
 

 

  
 BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING AGENDA 

  September 24, 2020   
 

1. WELCOME (4:30–4:50) 
 

2. CONSENT AGENDA (4:50–4:51) 
 Minutes of September 3, 2020 Board Meeting    pg. 2 

     
3. GOVERNANCE NOMINATIONS REPORT (4:51–4:55)*    pg. 5 

 

4. INVESTMENT COMMITTEE REPORT (4:55–5:05)    pg. 8 

 

5. PRESIDENT’S REPORT (5:05—5:15)    pg. 52 

 Overview of key issues and activities      

 

6. DEVELOPMENT REPORT     

 Directions for FY2021 (5:15—5:25)     

 Life & Legacy Program, Arlene Schiff, Exec. Director (5:25—5:55)    pg. 58 

 Charitable Gift Annuity Task Force Recommendation (5:55—6:10) *  pg. 74 

 

7. DESIGNATED FUNDS REVIEW COMMITTEE (6:10‐6:20) *    pg. 78 

 

8. BUDGET AND FINANCE REPORT (6:20‐6:30)*    pg. 79 

      

  
Appendix:     

 Board Affiliation and Disclosure Form    pg. 104 

 Sample Designated Fundholder Stewardship Letter    pg. 106 
 Grants Report    pg. 108 

* Items requiring a vote 

 

 

JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 1 of 130 



 

 

 
Board of Trustees 

Minutes of September 3, 2020 
Call to order: 5:02 p.m.   Adjournment: 6:16 p.m. 

 
Presiding: Leigh A. Newman, Chair                Recording: M. Leighty 
 
Present: Jessica L. Fish; Gerald B. Goldberg; Joshua Gottfried; Elysa L. Graber‐Lipperman; Walter L. Harrison; Merrill Mandell; Leigh A. Newman; 
David M. Roth; Cyral A. Sheldon; Julie R. Spivak; Gayle W. Temkin; Sidney Ulreich; Robert K. Yass; Carolyn Gitlin, ex‐officio. 
 
Absent: Thomas M. Divine, Life Trustee; Blanche S. Goldenberg, Life Trustee; Robert B. Goldfarb, Life Trustee; Steven F. Piaker; Randall H. 
Weinstock. 
 
Also Attending (non‐voting): Jacob Schreiber, President & CEO; Michael Elfenbaum, Vice President, Grant Programs; Kathryn Gonnerman, Vice 
President, Philanthropy; Susan Lotreck, Vice President, Donor Services; Rhona Morgan, Vice President, Finance; Maureen O’Connell, Marketing 
Director; Elana MacGilpin, Development and Stewardship Officer; Madison Leighty, Development Assistant. 
 

Agenda/Issue Discussion/Report  Action/Approval 
 

Follow‐Up 
 

Welcome and Chair’s Remarks  Ms. Newman welcomed everyone and called the 
meeting to order at 5:02 p.m. 

   
 

Consent Agenda 
Minutes of July 29, 2020 Meeting 

Ms. Newman directed the Trustees’ attention to the 
minutes of the July 29, 2020 meeting. 

The meetings of the July 29, 2020 
meeting were approved on 
consent. 

The minutes of the July 29, 
2020 meeting will be filed in 
the corporate notebook. 

RRR Fund Grants  Mr. Ulreich and Mr. Elfenbaum presented an overview 
of the proposed grants from the Jewish Hartford Rapid 
Relief & Recovery Fund (‘RRR Fund’). The trustees 
discussed and voted on each proposal separately, with 
consideration for each organization’s financial situation 
and adjustments they had to make due to Covid‐19. 

Upon motions, duly made and 
seconded, the Trustees 
unanimously approved 
distributions from the RRR Fund 
of $50,000 to Jewish Family 
Services; $10,000 to JTConnect; 
$5,000 to Voices of Hope; 
$10,000 to HSC/Summerwood; 
$10,000 to the Community 
Service Building; and $2,500 to 
Temple Beth Hillel. 

 

JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 2 of 130 



 
2 

 

Agenda/Issue Discussion/Report  Action/Approval 
 

Follow‐Up 
 

Upon motion, duly made and 
seconded, the Trustees approved 
a distribution from the RRR Fund 
of $5,000 to Camp Laurelwood 
with 11 votes in favor and 2 votes 
against. Ms. Temkin abstained 
from the vote. 
 
Upon motion, duly made and 
seconded, the Trustees approved 
a distribution from the RRR Fund 
of $75,000, to be split evenly 
between Solomon Schechter Day 
School, New England Jewish 
Academy and Mandell Jewish 
Community Center, with 13 votes 
in favor and 1 vote against. 

Racial Justice Grants 
 
 

Mr. Elfenbaum, Ms. Gonnerman and Ms. MacGilpin 
described the racial justice grants that had been 
researched by staff and approved by the Grants 
Committee. This grants process was a continuation and 
fulfillment of the Foundation’s statement in support of 
the Black American community made on Juneteenth of 
this year. 

Upon motion, duly made and 
seconded, the Trustees 
unanimously approved JCF grants 
of $10,000 each to the Urban 
League of Hartford and YWCA of 
Hartford. 

 

Designated Fund Spending Policy  Mr. Schreiber described a proposed change to the 
Foundation’s designated fund distribution practice, 
which would allow donors to request board approval of 
an invasion of up to 10% of a fund’s principal through 
the end of FY2021, due to the emergency 
circumstances presented by COVID‐19. He clarified that 
there are designated funds with fund agreements that 
allow for principal access in times of emergency, but 
this policy would cover other designated funds, where 
living donors might wish to provide extra support to 
community agencies, and do not have those terms 
written into their original fund agreements. 

Upon motion, duly made and 
seconded, the Trustees 
unanimously approved the 
revised designated fund spending 
policy. 

 

JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 3 of 130 



 
3 

 

Agenda/Issue Discussion/Report  Action/Approval 
 

Follow‐Up 
 

Adjournment:   Ms. Newman thanked the Trustees and called the 
meeting to a close at 6:16 p.m. 

    

 
 
Respectfully submitted by:  
 
__________________________ 
Gerald Goldberg, Secretary   
 

 

 

 

JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 4 of 130 



 
 
 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
FROM: MERRILL MANDELL, GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE CHAIR 
SUBJECT: UPDATED GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE NOMINATIONS FOR FY2021 
DATE: SEPTEMBER 16, 2020 
CC: GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

After a months-long process of discussions, the Governance Committee is presenting the FY2021 
Trustee Nominations Slate, which will be brought to a vote at our September Board meeting: 

The Governance Committee of the Foundation nominates the following individuals as new 
members of the Board of Trustees for a 3-year term (please see candidate background 
summaries, attached): 
 

 Ethan Goldman 
 Rachel Rubin 

 
The Governance Committee of the Foundation nominates the following individuals to an 
additional 3-year term as a Trustee: 
 

 Walter Harrison 
 Julie Spivak 

 
The Governance Committee of the Foundation nominates the following individual to an 
additional 1-year term as a Trustee: 
 

 Leigh Newman 
 
The Governance Committee of the Foundation nominates the following individuals to serve as an 
Executive Officer for a 2-year term: 
 

 Gayle Temkin – Board Chair 
 Elysa Graber-Lipperman – Treasurer 

 
 
Also of note is that Steve Piaker and David Roth will be rolling off the Board after years of 
active, thoughtful and valuable service to the Foundation. Thank you! 

JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 5 of 130 



 
 

 
Ethan Goldman 

Member, Board of Trustees  
 
 
Ethan Goldman is Chief Financial Officer at FLEXcon, INC., an international 
pressure sensitive materials manufacturer.  
 
Mr. Goldman is former Treasurer of the Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford 
and a former Israeli History Instructor at JTConnect. He also is a retired Major, 
United States Army Reserve – Field Artillery. For the last 15 years, Mr. Goldman 
served as Treasurer of the West Hartford Soccer League; he also served as a 
coach. 
 
Mr. Goldman and his wife, Julie, are active members of Beth El Temple in West 
Hartford.  
 
A Certified Public Accountant, Mr. Goldman graduated from Harvard Business 
School and The Wharton School at the University of Pennsylvania. He is a West 
Hartford resident.  
 
 
 
  

JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 6 of 130 



  
 
 

 
 
 

Rachel Rubin 
Member, Board of Trustees  

 
 
Rachel Rubin is Deputy Director of Athletics/Chief of Staff at the University of Connecticut and 
Executive Secretary to the University’s Board of Trustees. She previously served as Chief of 
Staff to the President of the University and was a member of the higher education 
subcommittee of the Governor’s Reopen Connecticut Advisory Group.  
 
A strong supporter of the local Jewish community, Ms. Rubin served on the Center for 
Innovative Philanthropy Advisory Committee at the Jewish Community Foundation of Greater 
Hartford, and on the Board for UConn Hillel.  
 
She is a member of B’nai Tikvoh-Sholom in Bloomfield. 
 
Ms. Rubin holds a B.S. in Business from the University of Connecticut and a J.D. from Suffolk 
University Law School, Boston, Mass. She resides in Bloomfield.  
 
  

JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 7 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 8 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 9 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 10 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 11 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 12 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 13 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 14 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 15 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 16 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 17 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 18 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 19 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 20 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 21 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 22 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 23 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 24 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 25 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 26 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 27 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 28 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 29 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 30 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 31 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 32 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 33 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 34 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 35 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 36 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 37 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 38 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 39 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 40 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 41 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 42 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 43 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 44 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 45 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 46 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 47 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 48 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 49 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 50 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 51 of 130 



1 
 

 
 
 

   
 

President’s Report/ Q1 FY2021 
September 24, 2020  

 

When the going gets tough, the tough get going. 
‐‐ John Thomas, Former Green Hornets Football Coach 

Solomon Coles High School  (TX) 

 

With Rosh Hashanah only a few days at the time of this writing, the first thing that comes to mind is how grateful I 
am to be part of an organization that continues to collectively step up to best serve our community during the 
unusual times of Covid‐19. Since our last regularly scheduled Board meeting in June, our Trustees have gathered 
together for three additional Board meetings (plus a plethora of other community meetings) to approve urgent 
Rapid Relief and Recovery Fund (RRRF) grants, as well as new policies and programs that will better assist our 
community to navigate the effects of the pandemic. Thank you so much for your gifts of time and counsel – and for 
living the example of inspired Jewish leadership. 
 
Thanks also go to our dedicated and resilient staff, who continue to work overtime to move the Foundation forward 
– by talking with donors, awarding grants, crafting new pandemic‐appropriate polices, checking in with our 
community partners, collaborating with Federation, communicating with our stakeholders, managing a ton of 
essential financial and donor relations activities, and researching new ways to improve our philanthropic offerings 
and donor experience. Pride is the word that comes to mind, as it characterizes what I – and you – should feel about 
how we responded when the going got tough. 
 
Since we’ve been getting together regularly, this report will refrain from reviewing the progress made regarding the 
RRRF or other items we discussed during our special meetings this quarter; instead, it will highlight some FY2020 
end‐of‐year numbers and touch upon other activities on which we’ve been concentrating over the last few months.   
 

IMPACT/GRANTS – As of 6/30/2020: (NOTE: Please see the Management Dashboard at the end of this report for a 

one‐page look at key numbers from the grants, budget and finance, development and marketing departments)  

 Unrestricted grant awards were down $600,000 from the same period last year. This includes several 

factors: 1) We had a large carryover from FY2018 and awarded several large grants in FY2019 including 

the $200,000 loan to Hebrew Senior Care and the $177,000 NEJA merger; 2) We granted $150,000 to 

support the Center for Innovative Philanthropy, which we did not do in FY2020; 3) This year, due to the 

COVID‐19 pandemic, the Foundation suspended its Community Grants Program to focus on Covid‐19 

relief and recovery and chose to bank $200,000 from our FY2020 unrestricted grants pool, so these 

funds would be available in FY2021 to assist the community, as the pandemic lingers on. 

 Donor Advised ‐‐ Donor Advised Fund grants were down relative to last year. Some of this because 

significantly more DAFs were interfund grants this year as compared to FY2019. These grants were 

largely made to the Rapid Relief and Recovery Fund ($300,000). In addition, one donor who typically 

awards approximately $90,000 in grants every May waited until August this year.  

 Designated grants were up approximately $250,000, largely due to large grants being made from a fund 

established by donors to support Hebrew Senior Care’s capital construction project and its cash flow 

JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 52 of 130 



2 
 

needs. In addition, the Board approved a 3‐year $169,000 grant for Senior Transportation. This grant will 

not be posted until the program officially begins and therefore is not counted in the designated fund 

totals.  

 

 As of 8/31/2020: 

 Unrestricted ‐‐ grants awarded to date in FY2021 represent contractual obligations and renewals of 

multi‐year grants. Due to the COVID‐19 pandemic, the Foundation continued its suspension of its regular 

Community Grants Program to focus on Covid‐19 relief and recovery. In the coming months, the 

Foundation will continue to focus on long‐term recovery and use the $700,000 we have available from 

our unrestricted funds pool ($200,000 of which was carried over from last year) to provide humanitarian 

assistance to individuals/families and funding to our community institutions to help mitigate the effects 

of Covid‐19. 

 Donor Advised ‐ as always, the comparison year over year of grants is difficult because every year is 

different. One example of this is that one fund advisor normally recommends a series of approximately 

30 grants totaling $73,000 every May. This year, those grants were awarded in August. 

 Designated ‐ grants are up approximately $318,000. The main reason is the increase in large grants from 

a fund established by donors to support Hebrew Senior Care’s construction of an expanded Behavioral 

Health Unit and to provide operational “bridge” funding for its operations. 

 Covid‐19 Rapid Relief and Recovery Fund– the Grants Committee has completed $280,000 in grantmaking 

to support our agency partners, and plans to complete the distribution of what will total about $220,000 

in synagogue grantmaking in October. Support for humanitarian needs in terms of financial assistance to 

individuals/families (and to JFS’ Kosher food pantry is ongoing ($75,000 has already been granted) and is 

expected to continue for a number of months.  

 

FUND DEVELOPMENT  

 Stewardship  

Meaningful stewardship continues to be a focal point of Development work, especially during COVID. In 

addition to ensuring consistent check‐ins (with the help of Trustees – thank you!), the staff has finalized a 

stewardship framework, with each staff person assigned a portfolio of individuals, families and agencies. 

We are also enhancing stewardship to designated fundholders with a new, customized letter in their 

annual fund statements, which includes a paragraph of thanks and impact from the beneficiary agency 

(please see a sample in the Board Packet).   

 

Good stewardship has also played a meaningful role in the significant increase in fund development from 

$3.8 million in FY2019 to $7.7 million in FY2020. Most of the increase came through Custodial Funds, 

including $3 million in new investment from the Schoke JFS of Stamford, CT, as well as the establishment 

a few new funds from local community partners, such as Beth El Temple. Contributions to donor advised 

and designated funds remained about the same as last year, while garnering donations to unrestricted 

funds remained quite challenging.  

 

 Board member engagement 

A key tactic in Goal One of the Strategic Plan is to enhance the role of Trustees to support the 

Foundation’s philanthropic efforts. Since then, Board members have played meaningful partnership 

roles, including participating on the RRRF Development Committee; contributing to the RRRF (88% of the 

JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 53 of 130 



3 
 

board); making stewardship calls during COVID‐19; serving on the Charitable Gift Annuities (CGA) Task 

Force; providing introductions to, and background information, on donors, and; acting as ambassadors. 

We are extremely grateful to our Trustees for all this support.  

  

 Systems and evaluation 

The Development Team has worked diligently this year to ensure its activities are rooted in solid ground 

through reliable data, practices and systems. The team collected pledge payments from most donors this 

year, and completed a full accounting of Aim Chai commitments to ensure good stewardship. It has also 

continued to improve the acknowledgement process, to address remote work needs, among other 

processes. This summer, the team has also embarked on a review of promises (legacy intentions) in our 

data base, a discussion of the feasibility of Charitable Gift Annuities (see the recommendation enclosed), 

an analysis of how to better position our Donor Advised Funds, and a review of prospect and cultivation 

practices.  

 

 Life & Legacy 

The Development Team is very excited to introduce the Trustees to the Grinspoon Foundation’s Life & 

Legacy Program, a well‐regarded program to engage our community in legacy (testamentary) giving. At 

the Board meeting, Arlene Schiff, the director of Life & Legacy, will make a presentation on the program 

for the Trustee’s consideration (please see background materials in the Board Packet). Staff believe this 

program to be an exciting opportunity to shore up the future of the community, even in – especially in—

these challenging financial and social times.  

 

 JewGood Hartford ‐‐ received 10 grant applications for its inaugural grant cycle in 2020 and voted to 

grant of $10,000 to the Connecticut Coalition to End Homelessness. The announcement was made at a 

Grant Reveal Party via zoom in late June. In response to the murder of George Floyd, JewGood Hartford 

and the Lillian Fund jointly launched a Tikkun Olam Campaign to support two CT based organizations 

working for racial equality and social justice. We raised $2000 collectively and grants were made to 

Hartford Communities That Care and the Connecticut Bail Fund. In August JewGood hosted a virtual Q & 

A with the Connecticut Coalition to End Homelessness and spearheaded a successful Drive Thru School 

Supplies Collection to benefit COMPASS Youth Collaborative in Hartford. We also recruited six new 

committee members for the 2020‐21 year, as six people left the committee to pursue graduate and law 

school, new jobs, and moved out of Hartford to be closer to family. If you know of anyone willing to 

partner with our emerging young leaders by contributing to building up a JewGood Endowment Fund, so 

young JewGooders really feel their contributions are making more of an impact, please let me or anyone in 

our Development Team know. 

 

 Lillian Fund 

The Lillian Fund received 13 grant applications from organizations in Hartford and Israel for the 2020 

grant cycle and awarded two grants in late July to local organizations that both serve victims of domestic 

violence. We gave a $5,000 grant to Interval House and a $10,000 grant to Prudence Crandall Center, 

which we toured back in February. We are planning to host a virtual Q & A with both agencies’ CEOs on 

October 7, moderated by Lillian Fund co‐chairs Melissa Weinstock and Lauren Drazen. We are also 

JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 54 of 130 



4 
 

planning to partner with Interval House and Prudence Crandall Center to see what their clients may need 

for the upcoming holiday season and do a collection for both agencies 
 

FINANCE/INVESTMENT 

 The stock market continues its surprising rally upward amid a troubled economy. As of 6/30/20 our fund 

balance (not including pledge receivables) stood at $124.5 million up from $122.7 at the same time last year. 

Our FY2020 Q4 portfolio return was 16%, outperforming its target benchmark by 70 basis points. As of 

8/31/2020, our estimated fund balance was even higher at $132.5 million. Kudos to our Investment 

Committee and Consultant for sticking with our investment policy and strategic asset distribution, which 

permitted us to recover from the severe downturns experienced in Q3 of FY2020.   

 

FY2020 & FY2021 BUDGETS:  

 Our FY2020 budget ending 06/30/20 recorded a surplus of $140,179, as expenses were at 91% of budget, 

mostly due to the delayed hiring of the VP of Philanthropy and Development Assistant, the deferral of 

replacing the Senior Development Officer, the elimination of the CIP Analyst position, and savings from the 

deferral of several planned activities, due to stay in place and social distancing requirements of COVID‐19. 

 

 The FY2021 budget, approved at the June 2020 Board meeting, originally called for an annual operating 

deficit of approximately $43,851. However, actual administrative fees exceeded the projected fees by 

$68,355 and, together with an audit expense savings of $5,855, resulted in a surplus of over $30,000. As a 

result, the FY2021 Operating Support Grant was reduced by the Budget and Finance Committee from 

$325,000 to $295,000, resulting in an essentially balanced budget. The adjusted FY2021 budget now reflects 

a 6.6% increase over the FY2020 actuals and 2.9% less than FY2020 budget. These revisions will be reviewed 

at the Board meeting and presented for approval. 

 

 COMMUNICATIONS/MARKETING  

The Marketing Department is producing a Messaging Toolkit, a series of documents that will empower 
stakeholders to better articulate JCF’s mission, activities and impact. In this board packet, you will find one of the 
toolkit documents that several board members requested: a brief explanation of our partnership with 
Federation. Titled Collaborative Messaging & Leadership Roles, this document offers a description of our shared 
vision for the Jewish community followed by a chart listing our joint efforts and distinct roles to achieve this 
vision. We worked with Federation to produce this document.    
 
To support our giving circles’ annual grants and racial justice grants, we distributed a press release to local media 
and secured five stories, including in The Hartford Courant, CT Jewish Ledger, West Hartford News and We‐
ha.com. Working with iMission institute, a digital strategy agency, we are re‐designing the Foundation’s website 
and expect to launch it in the winter.     

 

 TRUSTEE TRANSITIONS 

At the Board meeting we will be saying farewell (but not goodbye) to Steve Piaker and David Roth, who are 
rotating off the Board. In addition to their thoughtful counsel at Board meetings and with staff, Steve (nine 
years) has been the lay champion for JewGood, helping underwrite its first‐year activities and augmenting its 
grant pool. I know he’d appreciate a collaborative colleague to join him in these efforts. David (five years) has 
been an investment committee stalwart, lending his unique expertise in the realm of private equity investments. 
Both will be missed at Board meetings, but will continue to be engaged. Filling these open Board spots, upon 

JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 55 of 130 



5 
 

Board approval at our upcoming meeting, are Rachel Rubin and Ethan Goldman. Their bios are included in the 
Board packet. Both have received our updated Board Orientation Book, a great resource guide to all‐things 
Foundation, which is posted on the Board Portal for everyone’s reference.  

 
 OF NOTE 
 September marks Kathryn Gonnerman’s one‐year anniversary as VP of Philanthropy and her sixth year at the 

Foundation.  In her new role, Kathryn has instituted data‐based strategies and systems that have bolstered 
the efficacy of the Development team’s stewardship and operations, promoted a culture of inclusion and 
empowerment across departments, co‐staffed the RRRF Fund Development Committee and strengthened 
relationships with key partners and stakeholders. We are fortunate to have here at the Foundation.   

 
 Speaking of organizational culture, the Beat Team celebrated its one‐year anniversary of boosting our staff 

culture and overall work environment. Team members Elana MacGilpin, Goldy Singh, Christine Kelly and 
Maureen O'Connell consistently provide staff team‐building activities and thoughtful appreciation gifts that 
enhance staff cohesion. Over the past six months the Beat Team conducted a home video competition (Susie 
won) and other virtual games, and shipped each staff member a box containing fun activities to do at home, 
including “Indoor Quarantine Bingo,” a cheesecake recipe for Shavuot, and a s’mores kit tucked inside a 
“Thanks for All You Do” mug. Other care packages included home delivery of a basket of bagels and schmear, 
hand sanitizer and colorful masks, as well as gift vouchers to The Crown for a challah for Rosh Hashanah. In 
turn, the Foundation surprised each Beat Team member this month with a “Life is Good” T‐Shirt and a hand‐
written note of appreciation. Staff also very much appreciated receiving individual boxes of luscious Godiva 
chocolates from the Trustees. 

 
 

 

UPCOMING EVENTS 

 

 Our next scheduled Board meeting is December 17, 2020 at 5pm, location TBD (we can hope, can’t we?). We 

anticipate calling a special Board meeting in October to approve RRRF and JCF grants, so stay tuned. 

 

Shana Tova to everyone! 

May we all enjoy Rosh Hashana, have a meaningful Yom Kippur  

and usher in a New Year filled with health, happiness and love. 

 

 

 

JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 56 of 130 



         Management Dashboard........                       

Finance:                     FYTD 6/30/2020 06/30/2019 12/31/20172 , .2 Impact: Unrestricted Donor Advised Designated

Revenue as a  % of Budget 99% 100% Grants FYTD as of 6/30/2020(#/$): 14/$291,873 525/$1,185,677 471/$1,652,974
Expenses as % of Budget 91% 92% Grants FYTD as of 6/30/2019 (#/$) 14/$707,408 600/$2,272,294 497/$1,399,524
Current Operating Surplus(Deficit) 140,179 37,285
Cum. Operating Surplus/(Deficit) 309,463             219,284             Grants FYTD as of 8/31/2020(#/$): 5/$536,733 110/$373,065 416/$1,186,880
Personnel Exp. as % of Assets 1.01% 1.12%

Investment Returns Cal. YTD     1yr. 3yr. 5yr 10yr
JCF (6/30/2020): -4.5% 0.8% 4.6% 5.0% 7.3%

Overall Market Benchmark(6/30/2020): -5.7% 0.8% 4.8% 5.1% 7.5%
JCF (8/31/2020): 3.0% 11.4% 6.6% 7.6% 7.9%

FYTD
Fund Balance 

6/30/2020
Fund Balance     

6/30/2019
 % Growth 

Prior Yr. End
Fund Balance 
8/31/2020*

Unrestricted 28,768,846       29,112,542       -1.18% 30,531,328       
     Donor Advised 35,078,802       36,621,425       -4.21% 37,788,383       

     Designated 40,900,155       40,690,174       0.52% 43,046,075       
     Custodial 19,735,746       16,318,165       20.94% 21,165,045       

JCF Holdings A, LLC 1                         1                         0.00% 1                         
     Total 124,483,550$   122,742,307$   1.42% 132,530,831$   

*Fund Balances include estimated August 2020 Investment earnings

*Fund Balances do not reflect pledge receivables

Development/Donors:* 6/30/2020 6/30/2019 8/31/2020 , ., Communication/Awareness:
No. of New Funds Total FYTD 16                       29                       2 Facebook Summer 2020 Spring 2020 % Change
No. of New Custodial Funds FYTD 7                         8                         0    Page Engagement 259 582 -55%
New Custodial Funds Value FYTD $1,586,453 $55,466 $0.00    Post Reach 7,600 4,471 70%

No. of Bequests/Legal Transfers Gift FYTD 12                       9                         0 Email Marketing* Summer 2020 Spring 2020 % Change
Bequests/Legal Transfers Value FYTD 762,997$           205,946$           0      Average Open Rate 37% 40% -8%
As % of Total Donations FYTD 9.9% 5.3% 0.0%     

 
Total Donations FYTD* 7,696,796$       3,857,884$       $838,577.60 Media Placements Summer 2020 Spring 2020  

Unrestricted  Funds 554,326$           163,701$           $105,258.82 8 10 -20%
Donor Advised Funds 1,357,690$       1,397,805$       $338,360.55

Designated Funds 1,190,816$       1,171,965$       $261,773.68    
Custodial Funds 4,593,965$       1,124,413$       $133,184.55   

* Reflects gifts received (including Aim Chai pledge 
payments) and does not reflect Interfund Gifts.

0.0% 5.0% 10.0% 15.0% 20.0% 25.0% 30.0% 35.0% 40.0% 45.0%

Seniors, 9.6%
Religion/Spiritual, 9.9%

Outreach, 2.0%
Other, 2.0%

Israel/Overseas, 1.5%
Human Services, 18.0%

Education, 11.4%

Community Building, 
43.7%Arts & Culture, 1.8%

Grants Awarded by Program Area
as of August 31, 2020

Report prepared September 14, 2020

JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 57 of 130 



$1 BILLION IN LEGACY COMMITMENTS:  
An Effective Strategy to Build Your Endowment

“Providing Jewish communities with proven tools and 
training to help them secure their long-term financial goals 
is absolutely vital. Through the LIFE & LEGACY® program, 
I’m hopeful that we will be able to help sustain vibrant 
communities that allow future generations to enjoy our  
rich Jewish culture and heritage.” 

- HAROLD GRINSPOON

JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 58 of 130 



INTRODUCTION

Many nonprofit Jewish organizations have been left in precarious financial positions due to the COVID-19 
pandemic. Unfortunately, this is just the latest in a long list of disasters that have impacted society. We have 
faced hurricanes, floods, wildfires, shifting politics and the global financial collapse in 2007, and we will face 
more in the years to come. Raising cash is a temporary, short-term fix. Organizations need a more robust 
solution to ensure their survival. 

Endowments are the answer.

An endowment fund is no longer a luxury. It can provide long-term, financial stability for the nonprofit 
organizations that serve a vital role in the fabric of a Jewish community. With an endowment in place, 
organizations receive a steady stream of cash flow into the future, thus putting less stress on annual  
operating budgets. 

This is the ideal time to establish a new endowment or promote commitments to an existing endowment. 
According to the Chronicle of Philanthropy, Baby Boomers are in the process of transferring an estimated  
$8.8 trillion by 2027, and the pandemic has ignited a surge in estate planning. Leaving after-lifetime assets to  
an endowment provides community members with another way to make a difference and secure the future. 

LIFE & LEGACY® provides training, support, and monetary incentives to Jewish organizations that want  
to build permanent endowments. In just under eight years since the Harold Grinspoon Foundation 
launched this initiative, sixty-three Jewish communities across the US and Canada have secured  
more than $1 billion in legacy commitments. 

From Chicago to Charleston and Montreal to Calgary, more than 17,000 individuals have answered the call 
with nearly 28,000 legacy commitments to support the Jewish organizations they care about. Loyal donors  
are honoring values instilled by parents and grandparents, commemorating loved ones and perpetuating  
Jewish values of generosity and tzedakah. New and existing endowments have already received more  
than $112 million, and distributions are supporting organizational operating budgets. 

Surpassing the $1 billion milestone is the tip of the iceberg. LIFE & LEGACY does not just strengthen 
communities financially; it strengthens them socially. The initiative brings together organizations that previously 
saw each other as competitors. They become trusted partners who cooperate, share resources, learn from, 
support, and celebrate one another. 

Legacy giving is becoming a social norm in these individual communities, and it is our goal to ensure it 
becomes normative donor behavior within all Jewish communities across North America. Donor stewardship 
has led to greater connectedness and engagement of donors. We share their stories, list their names and 
honor them at events. 

To all donors who support an organization on an annual basis, know that you can increase your impact by 
making a legacy commitment. When you do, synagogues will continue to be a Jewish sacred space in which to 
gather, make friends, celebrate, mourn, pray and live among others with shared values. Jewish day schools will 
continue to educate our children in a loving environment and teach what it means to be part of a community. 
Jewish social service organizations will continue to care for the vulnerable among us.

This white paper provides an overview of how the LIFE & LEGACY initiative works, common myths about 
endowments and a detailed look at its success in three very different Jewish communities in the US. But first, 
we will look at the origins of the program.

JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 59 of 130 



BACKGROUND

LIFE & LEGACY has its roots in San Diego, California. Gail Littman (of blessed 
memory) and Marjory Kaplan, former CEO of the San Diego Jewish Community 
Foundation, launched the Endowment Leadership Institute (ELI) in 2004. 

Word of its success soon reached Harold Grinspoon, a philanthropist who is 
committed to preserving vibrant Jewish life through his eponymous foundation.  
In 2008, he invited Gail to launch a similar initiative in his hometown community 
in western Massachusetts. 

Along with Areivim, a two-year pilot program in four major cities funded by 
Harold Grinspoon, the San Diego Jewish Community Foundation and several 
other funders, the initiative was a huge success. After integrating legacy giving  
into the Harold Grinspoon Foundation’s (HGF) camp program, Harold  
convinced Gail to join HGF in 2012. The initiative was renamed LIFE & LEGACY 
and relaunched just before Gail tragically passed away in December 2012.  
Four months later,  Arlene D. Schiff took the reins of LIFE & LEGACY. 

The success of LIFE & LEGACY is the result of a structured curriculum, 
accountability, incentives and organizational commitment to endowment building. 

JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 60 of 130 



HOW IT WORKS

LIFE & LEGACY is a culture-changing initiative with a four-year structured 
curriculum. During the program, organizations within a Jewish community 
learn how to create a sustainable endowment process. Recognizing that 
this is a big undertaking, the Harold Grinspoon Foundation (HGF) offers 
incentive grants every year for four years to recognize and reward the 
community’s success. 

The ultimate goal of an endowment is to provide an organization with a 
steady stream of funds. Ideally, 20% or more of an organization’s operating 
funds come from their endowment. If membership or fundraising dips – or 
a pandemic abruptly arrives on the scene – the organization will not teeter 
on the verge of collapse. 

LIFE & LEGACY does much more than support and encourage legacy 
giving in Jewish communities. It is a community-building enterprise that 
emphasizes collaboration. As a result, it creates a united and strong Jewish 
community for future generations.

To begin, a Jewish Federation or Jewish Community Foundation (JCF) makes 
a commitment to help local Jewish organizations (for example, synagogues, 
day schools, community centers and social services) within its catchment 
area build endowments through after-lifetime giving. The Federation or JCF 
applies to be part of LIFE & LEGACY. Once accepted, the Federation or 
JCF partners with 10-15 local organizations and hires a Legacy Coordinator 
to administer the community-wide effort. The Legacy Coordinator in 
each community is instrumental to the initiative’s success. They mentor 
organizations throughout the process, helping them integrate legacy giving 
and change their organizational culture.

Each of the local organizations form a Legacy Team consisting of 
professionals and lay leaders who are committed to the concept of legacy 
giving and willing to assist in securing legacy commitments.

“LIFE & LEGACY 
has been successful 
in every community 
with which it has 
partnered. All of 
our communities 
have made their 
first-year legacy 
commitment goals, 
and with only a few 
exceptions, have 
met the goals all 
four years.”

– ARLENE D. SCHIFF

JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 61 of 130 



HOW IT WORKS

THE INCENTIVES

The incentive grant program is a key component 
to LIFE & LEGACY’s overwhelming success. During 
Years 1-4, HGF provides funding to the federation 
or JCF for the program, which includes incentive 
grants to reward the local organizations for reaching 
their annual legacy giving goals. In Year 5, we offer 
each community a $10,000 grant to assist them in 
continuing to administer their community-wide  
legacy initiative as HGF incentive grant funding and 
on-site trainings come to an end.  

HGF provides up to one-third of the Federation  
or JCF’s annual LIFE & LEGACY budget up to a 
maximum of $100,000 per year for four years. 
This ensures incentive grants are offered and some 
administrative expenses are covered. The Federation 
or JCF provides the remaining two-thirds of the 
annual budget either through their annual budget, 
proceeds from an endowment or funding provided 
by individual donors. We require that the incentive 
grants to local organizations be a minimum of $5,000 
each year. We also encourage communities to offer 
a tiered incentive grant. This helps ensure local 
organizations remain motivated once they reach  
the minimum incentive grant goal. 

In the beginning, the incentives are key to motivating 
organizations to do the work necessary to meet 
stated goals. As they see success, they become 
internally motivated and begin applying the 
lessons learned through LIFE & LEGACY to their 
organization overall and its other development 
efforts. The incentives play a critical role in changing 
each organization and the community’s culture of 
philanthropy. They also motivate donors to take  
action on making a legacy commitment in a timely 
way, rather than putting it off as something they can 
do in the future (in much the same way a matching 
grant motivates donors to make a cash gift today). 

PROGRAM OVERVIEW

Each year builds upon the previous year. During  
the first year, HGF provides Legacy Teams with the 
tools they need to lay the foundation for a successful 
initiative. In Year 2, we build upon Year 1 stewardship 
activities, encourage more legacy commitments and 
increase marketing. In Years 3 and 4, we focus on 
helping donors legally put in place the commitments 
they made in Years 1 and 2, striving for at least 
75% formalization. We also require organizations 
to further integrate effective stewardship activities 
into the culture of their organizations, as long-
term stewardship is key to keeping donor legacy 
commitments in place. Years 3 and 4 focus on setting 
each organization up for long-term sustainability of 
their legacy initiative to ensure that on an annual 
basis, in perpetuity, they are continuing to market the 
concept of legacy giving, securing new commitments, 
stewarding donors and formalizing gifts. In Year 4, we 
instruct organizations on how to think through all the 
elements needed to sustain their efforts to date and 
provide a format for putting this plan in writing.

JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 62 of 130 



HOW IT WORKS

YEAR 1: Building a foundation for legacy giving

The first year is an intense, hands-on timeframe for both HGF and the Legacy Teams. 

Legacy Teams receive training and guidance on creating a Legacy Plan; begin having Legacy Conversations with 
members of their communities; marketing their Legacy initiative; and take initial steps to effectively steward 
donors. They submit quarterly reports to monitor progress, help them stay on track, and address any challenges 
that arise. Communities set aggregate goals, create Letters of Intent forms and implement the initiative. 

At the end of Year 1 (and all subsequent years), each Partner submits an actual budget, final quarterly report for 
the year and a list of incentive grants due to participating organizations. HGF then issues the first year’s matching 
payment, and the Partner celebrates with a community-wide event to thank and honor those donors who have 
made a legacy commitment to one or more organizations. In many cases, this is the first time that donors from 
different organizations, levels of wealth and demographics have been brought together simply to be thanked for 
their support. This yearly gathering becomes an eagerly anticipated event each year and signifies a community-
wide shift from competition to collaboration among local organizations. 

YEAR 2: Embracing legacy giving

To kick off Year 2 (and subsequent years), HGF and each Partner evaluate the program to date and establish 
both organizational and community-wide legacy commitment goals. Meanwhile, Legacy Teams build on what 
they learned during Year 1. They receive training on how to follow up on Letters of Intent so donors legally put 
their legacy commitment in place. They review best practices in the areas of having conversations, marketing 
and stewardship, including how to integrate legacy conversations into all fundraising solicitations and become 
more donor-centric organizations. This is the year when organizations gain competency in engaging with donors, 
deepening relationships, having legacy conversations, securing commitments and being good stewards. 

YEAR 3: Legally formalizing legacy commitments

At the beginning of Year 3, Legacy Teams are encouraged to share an organization’s impact and legacy donor 
testimonials to encourage additional legacy commitments. They also document and implement stewardship plans 
for the year that move donors to a legally formalized commitment. Halfway through the year, HGF meets with 
each Legacy Team to celebrate their successes and brainstorm around challenges. 

YEAR 4: Ensuring sustainability

In Year 4, each Legacy Team undergoes sustainability training. They receive a sustainability workbook to help them 
plan how to carry on their initiative once HGF funding is no longer available as a motivator. This final training 
helps each organization develop additional ways to integrate legacy giving into their culture. 

Year 4 brings heightened confidence among organizations and their teams. At this point, legacy giving is fast 
becoming a social norm with the publication of legacy donor names, donor testimonials and effective stewardship.

JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 63 of 130 



THE LETTER OF INTENT HAS A STARRING ROLE

The beauty of the Letter of Intent is that it provides donors with one form in which to leave commitments to 
multiple organizations. In other words, organizations within a community, from pre-schools to synagogues, do 
not compete for legacy gifts. Instead, they work together to secure the future of their entire community.

If a donor doesn’t disclose the value of their gift, Partners use an estimate. Based on our research, the national 
average for Legacy Gifts is in the $32,000 - $72,000 range. We decided to be very conservative and, the majority 
of our community partners use $25,000 as a placeholder.

A few larger communities we have worked with use $50,000 as their average, because that is their actual 
experience. Some small communities use $10,000. Actual gifts range from $1,000 to $10 million. 

HOW IT WORKS

63 
communities

680 
organizations

More than  

$112 million 
already placed in endowments

Nearly 28,000 
legacy commitments

$1.04 billion  
committed to the  

Jewish future

LIFE & LEGACY by the Numbers

JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 64 of 130 



MYTHS ABOUT ENDOWMENTS 

Myth 1: The Legacy Conversation is about the donor’s death.

A Legacy Conversation is not about death. Rather, it’s a conversation that focuses on giving the  
donor the opportunity to do something significant during their lifetime.

Myth 2: Legacy Gifts are only given as cash.

Legacy gifts can be made via life insurance policies, annuities, retirement funds, bequests or  
other assets.

Myth 3: Legacy gifts take away from family inheritance.

In our experience, the majority of an estate is left to family members. Legacy commitments usually 
represent a small percentage of an estate or other asset. 

Myth 4: Only the wealthy participate.

Wealthy community members are not an organization’s only prospects. We have found that the best 
prospects are your most loyal donors.

Myth 5: Legacy giving hurts annual campaigns.

The opposite is true. One researcher found that donors increase their annual giving by a remarkable 
75% after making a legacy commitment. They are more informed, more connected and more engaged. 

Myth 6: We don’t have the time to create a legacy giving program.

You are already spending time on donor relations for annual campaigns, so you absolutely have time 
for conversations about legacy giving. 

JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 65 of 130 



SUCCESS STORIES

Charlotte, NC
Completed the 4-year  
L & L curriculum in 2017

“It’s ultimately not about the needs of the community or 
organization; it’s about identifying and connecting with the 
passions of the donors.” 

When the Foundation for the Charlotte Jewish Community joined LIFE & 
LEGACY in 2012, the Executive Director, Phil Warshauer, had no doubt it 
would be successful. “I was very aware of the program’s success in San Diego, 
where it originally started,” he said. “I had high expectations it would be 
successful here in Charlotte.”

And successful it has been: To date, $27 million in legacy gifts have been 
committed from 400 individuals and families. “We think that number is very 
conservative,” Mr. Warshauer pointed out.

It was not smooth sailing into LIFE & LEGACY. As Mr. Warshauer said, 
nonprofits know they should have a planned giving program in place, but it 
can be hard to drum up enthusiasm for something that’s constantly pushed 
to the backburner. “Incentive grants made a bigger difference in the actions of 
the organizations than I anticipated,” he explained. “It was the hook that got 
people to care about the long-term sustainability of their organization and 
evolution of their community.”

The Foundation’s goal was to ensure that every donor went beyond the 
commitment and formalized their legacy gift. Because of LIFE & LEGACY’s 
success, organizations begin each fiscal year on a more solid footing; they know 
a certain percentage of their funding represents both current and past donors. 

Charlotte is a unique Jewish community. A majority of Jewish organizations are 
located on one campus, and many community members have served on various 
boards with various organizations. Even with an estimated 12,000 – 15,000 
Jews in and around the city, it often feels like everyone knows each other. 

“There is more collaboration than competition,” Mr. Warshauer said.  
“When a donor is approached by one organization, they usually stop to  
think about the other organizations they support - and they leave legacies to 
those organizations, too. The term we heard initially from our colleagues in  
San Diego was coop-itation (a combination of cooperation and competition). 
We wanted to create a culture of philanthropy, which we have done.” 

Phil Warshauer,  
Executive Director, 
Foundation for the 
Charlotte Jewish 

Community

JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 66 of 130 



SUCCESS STORIES

Omaha, NE
Completed the 4-year  
L & L curriculum in 2018

“When I heard about LIFE & LEGACY, I asked why we hadn’t done  
something like this before.” 

Howard Epstein, Executive Director of the Jewish Federation of Omaha 
Foundation, might have been enthusiastic about joining the program, but his 
board of directors was not. “They were concerned it would take money away 
from our Federation’s perpetual annual campaign endowment and Lion of 
Judah program,” Mr. Epstein explained. “Eventually the board said, let’s do it.  
I was optimistic; I thought we could raise $10 million for the endowment.  
Our board didn’t think we could.”

The Jewish community in Omaha immediately embraced legacy giving. They 
are approaching $22 million in promised gifts, which represents 675 signed 
commitments from 350 individual legacy donors. They have already received 
some substantial gifts and have found that most people are giving to multiple 
organizations. 

One of the biggest surprises has been the size of the gifts. A single woman of 
fairly modest means left a legacy gift in the $1 - 1.5 million range. A Holocaust 
survivor left $125,000 to multiple causes. “We assigned the value of $25,000 
to both of those gifts,” Mr. Epstein said. 

“I met with an older couple who lived in a modest home in a modest 
neighborhood,” Mr. Epstein continued. “They said they’d like to leave a gift to 
the synagogue and federation. I said, ‘Great! ‘Let’s fill in a dollar amount.’ They 
responded, ‘Well, we don’t want to sound overly optimistic, so why don’t you 
put us down for $10 million.’ By the way, this is not calculated as part of that 
$22 million [mentioned above]. In the interim, they decided to start giving until 
they pass away. They have given in excess of $700,000 to two endowments.” 

With only 6,500 people, the Jewish community in Omaha is small. LIFE & 
LEGACY has helped it become more engaged, cohesive, cooperative and 
sustainable. “One thing that we are grappling with is the tendency of the Jewish 
population to gravitate to larger cities,” Mr. Epstein said. “We have a concern 
that the younger generations will move away and stay away. The endowment 
income will be important to sustaining a vibrant community and attracting 
Jews who are interested in small city living.”

Howard Epstein, 
Executive Director of  

the Jewish Federation of 
Omaha Foundation

JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 67 of 130 



SUCCESS STORIES

Orange County, CA
Completed the 4-year  
L & L curriculum in 2017

“We knew about the transference of wealth that was taking place, 
and these generations weren’t giving to Jewish organizations.”

When Wendy Arenson joined the Jewish Community Foundation of Orange 
County as Executive Director, leadership was already discussing the need for 
an endowment. Ms. Arenson instinctively knew that they needed a program 
that would leverage other organizations in the Jewish community, which, at 
around 8,000 people, is relatively small. 

“People were very much in their silos,” Ms. Arenson explained. “The only way 
they engaged with the Jewish community was through their synagogue. It was 
clear that we needed to break down the silos so we could have one Jewish 
response. I also knew we needed to change our approach to philanthropy.”

Before they could apply to join LIFE & LEGACY, Ms. Arenson worked hard to 
build trust between the federation and other Jewish organizations. “We had to 
get leaders from these organizations to expose their donors to us and other 
organizations. My expectations were moderate. I was hopeful we would have 
some success and that it would bring the community together.” 

In fact, LIFE & LEGACY has been a tremendous success in Orange County. At 
the close of 2019, they had received 719 legacy commitments; the conservative 
value of those commitments is $18.9 million, with $7.4 million realized to date. 

“Financially, legacy giving provides us with the potential for  
a vibrant Jewish future,” Ms. Arenson said. “Relationship-wise, 
it gives us the ability to do new and exciting things together. 
Organizations are having conversations about combining  
resources to be more effective. Donors look at the community 
as a whole and it opens the door to new relationships, deeper 
understanding and stronger connections. This has been especially 
helpful during the pandemic.” 

Wendy Arenson, 
Executive Director of  
the Jewish Community 

Foundation of 
Orange County

As LIFE & LEGACY extends its reach, and more Jewish individuals become 
legacy donors, we can assure there will always be Jewish life in cities across 
North America. No one can predict the future, but we are confident there will  
be vibrant Jewish life for generations to come.

JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 68 of 130 



JOIN US

The devastating economic impact of the pandemic has made it clear that Jewish communities must 
act now to secure a strong, vibrant and financially stable future. For those Jewish communities in the 
US and Canada who have not joined LIFE & LEGACY yet, this is the time to take action.  As initially 
envisioned, we planned to take on new communities during a 10-year period.  We are currently in 
Year 8, and we want to integrate legacy giving into the culture of as many North American Jewish 
communities as possible. Please contact us to learn more about getting started. 

Visit us at jewishlifelegacy.org or call us at (413) 276-0784. 

Note: Because LIFE & LEGACY is supported by a Jewish foundation, we cannot partner with nonprofit 
organizations outside the Jewish community. Based on the tremendous success of LIFE & LEGACY with 
680 organizations, we know that a long-term legacy giving initiative can absolutely work for you. Stop 
thinking about it – just do it!

For a full list of participating communities:  
jewishlifelegacy.org/communitypartners

JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 69 of 130 

https://jewishlifelegacy.org/
http://jewishlifelegacy.org/communitypartners


Legacy Giving Program Raises $1 Billion 
for Jewish Communities 
By Eden Stiffman, The Chronicle of Philanthropy, July 29, 2020 
 

 
Representatives of the Greater Denver Jewish community celebrate at a 2019 gathering of leaders in the Life & Legacy 
program. 
 
A collaborative effort to build endowments to support the future of Jewish community organizations recently hit a 
major milestone: more than $1 billion in legacy-gift commitments in less than eight years. 

Called Life & Legacy, the program includes coaching, training, and incentive grants to ensure that legacy giving 
becomes a norm in Jewish philanthropic culture. 

The Harold Grinspoon Foundation started the program in 2012, partnering with Jewish federations and community 
foundations in a city or region over four years to help start a communitywide legacy-giving program. Since then, 
more than 63 communities in North America have participated with volunteers and staff promoting planned giving 
to more than 700 local organizations, including Jewish day schools, synagogues, and social-service charities. 

"While $1 billion is a huge milestone, we also know it's the tip of the iceberg," says Arlene Schiff, national director of 
the Life & Legacy program. "We're hoping that we'll see another billion dollars in commitments in maybe half the 
time." 

In addition to reaching the dollar goal, the program has succeeded in improving how organizations within 
communities work together and "making the case that a rising tide does raise all boats," Schiff says. 

JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 70 of 130 

https://philanthropy.prod.chronicle.psdops.com/article/how-jewish-community-groups-are-collaborating-on-planned-gift-fundraising/
https://philanthropy.prod.chronicle.psdops.com/article/how-jewish-community-groups-are-collaborating-on-planned-gift-fundraising/


New Collaborations 
Here's how the program works: The foundation pays about a third of the program costs — a maximum of $100,000 
per community for each of the four years. The federations and community foundations must come up with the rest. 

The Grinspoon grants pay for training sessions during the four-year effort, and organizations get incentive grants if 
they reach their minimum goal for securing planned-gift commitments. Participating organizations set a goal for the 
number of planned-gift commitments they’ll aim to secure individually and collectively. During the first two years of 
the program, the target is 18, a spiritual number in Judaism. Each community also has a collective goal of 18 times 
the number of participating organizations. For example, a locale with 10 groups in the program will aim to get 180 
commitments. 

The investment from participating federations and community foundations generally covers marketing, staff travel 
to attend conferences, a donor thank-you event, and the salary of a part-time employee, who coordinates the local 
organizations and serves as liaison to the Grinspoon fund. 

ADVERTISEMENT 

Participating organizations also form teams of volunteers to assist the paid staff member, who is often a rabbi or 
executive director. The volunteer team writes a legacy plan that outlines how the groups will carry out the first few 
years of the program and which donors they’ll approach first. During meetings with donors and prospects, the 
fundraisers are encouraged to promote each other’s causes. Pledge forms contain a list of all participating groups, 
and donors select an average of three organizations to receive a planned gift. 

Community organizations go through training together, meet informally to share advice and discuss challenges, hold 
joint donor thank-you events, and share lists of 20 key prospects, often longtime donors. 

Much of this, of course, has been upended by the pandemic. 

When the pandemic started in March, the Grinspoon fund encouraged people to focus on stewarding donors who've 
already left a legacy gift and continuing to market the concept of legacy giving, Schiff says. 

The program has always stressed that the best way to have the conversation about legacy giving is face-to-face. 
"We've had to back off on that, knowing that in most places and with many donors, face-to-face is not something 
that's going to happen anytime soon," Schiff says. Instead, she and her colleagues are coaching program participants 
on how best to send an email introduction and follow up with a phone or Zoom call to continue the conversation. 

"While most organizations are struggling with working in this new environment, they also know that they can't give 
up on planning for the future. While the pandemic is a crisis like no other, we know that it's not going to be the last 
crisis," Schiff says. "The fact that those organizations who've had an endowment now are in a better place than those 
who didn't is enough motivation for our program participants to continue integrating legacy giving into their 
culture." 

The relationships organizations have built with each other through the Life & Legacy program are paying off as the 
pandemic drags on, Schiff says. 

"You see a lot of federations running crisis campaigns and all of the organizations directing people to that one 
campaign versus running competing campaigns," she says. "They then were able to pivot much more quickly to 
working collaboratively on another program because of the relationships they had built." 

Young Donors 
The Jewish Federation of Cincinnati brought the Life & Legacy program to its community in 2014. The first group of 
15 organizations quickly saw the value and started a second group, continuing to expand their program using local 
funds. The community now has 23 organizations that are collectively working on what the federation calls Create 
Your Jewish Legacy. 

JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 71 of 130 



"Unlike hospitals and colleges who have been working on endowments for years and years and years, small agencies 
and organizations were not," says Debra Steinbuch, director of planned giving and endowment at the federation. 
They might have a small one, but they didn't necessarily know how to invest it or how to spend the money, she says. 

ADVERTISEMENT 

Cincinnati was the first community in the program to secure 1,000 legacy commitments. In the early years of the 
program, it had the largest number of legacy commitments from donors in their 40s — younger than the typical 
planned-giving donor. 

That's thanks to a few specific tactics — and passionate volunteers. 

A federation volunteer named Ariella Cohen was in her 40s when she made her planned-gift commitment. She grew 
up in Cincinnati and went to Jewish day school and Jewish camps and later sent her kids. She's a member of a local 
synagogue and participated in a leadership program for Jewish adults. She went to her group of friends, held parlor 
meetings, and had conversations with them about legacy giving, Steinbuch says. 

"She brought them along with her to have these conversations and to understand that you don't have to be 50 and 60 
and 70, that this isn't about giving money out of your pocketbook today," she says. Even if it's committing just 
1percent of your retirement account, it's still doing something to keep your community vibrant well into the future, 
Cohen would tell them. 

As the program progressed, conversations about legacy giving started to become a part of every committee meeting, 
every board meeting. "Any place we can have a conversation and talk about Create Your Jewish Legacy, we do," 
Steinbuch says. 

 
Lottie Nilsen, associate vice president of foundation development at the Jewish Federation of South Palm Beach County 
holds the certificate communities receive when they complete the four-year Life & Legacy curriculum. She’s joined by 
Winnie Sandler Grinspoon, president of the Harold Grinspoon Foundation, and the fund's founder, Harold Grinspoon. 
 

JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 72 of 130 



Program participants also encourage local financial advisers and estate lawyers to mention legacy giving in 
conversations with their clients. 

And organizations that had never spoken were now collaborating. 

"Our hope is that they will all be strong well into the future and that they will continue to sustain themselves over 
time," Steinbuch says. "It feels like we're helping them collectively understand all about endowments and building 
legacy for their community." Equally important, she says, are the conversations about the value the organizations 
and the Jewish community add to donors' lives. 

Looking ahead, Schiff, with the Grinspoon fund, hopes other Jewish communities join the program. She also hopes 
other donors step forward to support the program's operating costs in communities. 

Being part of the national effort has allowed Jewish communities across the country to learn from each other, 
Steinbuch says. 

"It's nice to know we're all really working together to make the Jewish world stronger," she says. "This was like a 
cookbook that was put together for us. We needed to learn how to scramble the egg right, sift the flour right. Now 
we're able to have successful long-term sustainability because we've been taught how to do it, and we're able to teach 
other people." 

Plus, read a white paper on lessons learned from the program. 

 

JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 73 of 130 

https://chronicle.brightspotcdn.com/28/3b/bd44c497457eb3612887fefdcedb/1-billion-in-legacy-commitments-an-effective-strategy-to-build-your-endowment1.pdf


 

Charitable Gift Annuity Review 2020 
Given the financial challenges presented by COVID‐19, the Foundation seeks to explore all avenues for 

donor partnership, for the benefit of the community and the Foundation. In keeping with the 

Foundation’s strategic plan, the Development Staff will be exploring Charitable Gift Annuities (CGAs), 

Donor Advised Funds, and Legacy giving, each in separate processes. Furthermore, with the 

Foundation’s potential involvement in a comprehensive legacy program, a robust set of planned giving 

options may prove an important complement. In Summer 2020, community donors have expressed 

interest in CGAs as well; with current financial uncertainties, CGAs may also become more popular in the 

coming months or years.  

A taskforce reviewed the history and marketability of CGAs over two meetings, debating the relative 

benefits and risks of a program and its necessary parameters. The Foundation thanks Leigh Newman, 

Gayle Temkin, Josh Gottfried, Bob Yass, and Elysa Graber‐Lipperman for their diligent, thoughtful 

consideration and the recommendations included in this memo.  

Charitable Gift Annuities: Pros, Cons and How They Work 

Definition  
A charitable gift annuity is a contract between a donor and a charity with the following terms: As a 

donor, you make a sizable gift to charity using cash, securities or possibly other assets. In return, you 

become eligible to take a partial tax deduction for your donation, plus you receive a fixed stream of 

income from the charity for the rest of your life. (Please see a sample illustration enclosed.) 

Benefits to Donors and the Foundation 
Donors seeking a reliable source of fixed income can find CGAs attractive. They are relatively easy, 

straightforward, and tax‐advantaged; some call CGAs an introduction to planned gifts. They are 

inexpensive to set up, relative to other planned gifts that require lawyers and extended set‐up.  

Current rates are quite low, meaning that the Foundation could provide a steady stream of income for 

annuitants at relatively lower risk. However, these rates – industry standards determined by the 

American Council on Gift Annuities (ACGA) ‐‐ are set based on a combination of actuarial tables and 

market expectations. Low rates generally happen when market rates of return are also relatively lower. 

The CGA program rates will inevitably fluctuate, and the Board’s approach to the CGA program should 

not rely on low rates as a source of comfort. 

Many large nonprofits and community foundations provide CGAs, and so to some extent offering CGAs 

may be seen as a badge of sophistication. CGAs can be considered a core offering of a robust planned 

giving program, and provides donors with a full slate of options to meet their philanthropic goals.   

JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 74 of 130 



 
History of the Program 
As recently as 2008, the Foundation’s Board of Trustees approved a complete Charitable Gift Annuity 

program, including minimum ages (60 years old), minimum amounts ($10,000 for single life and $25,000 

for joint life), and approaches to manage risk. The outline of this program is available by request.  

In 2013, the Board of Trustees made a decision to reinsure the Foundation’s charitable gift annuities to 

mitigate financial liabilities. After many years of successful results from CGAs, the Foundation found 

itself with a portfolio of annuities where annuities had lasted much longer than expected, and as such 

the Foundation had financial liabilities to contend with. The committee believed that reinsurance would 

clear the books and mitigate risks in the future as they embarked on the Aim Chai Endowment 

Campaign.  

ACGA Rates and Projecting into the Future 
A financially successful Charitable Gift Annuity program returns about 50% of the actuarial remainder of 

the annuities it issues. The ACGA builds this assumption into its annual payout rate recommendations, 

as outlined on their website: 

Generally speaking, the ACGA's suggested maximum rates are designed to produce a target gift 
for charity at the conclusion of the contract equal to 50% of the funds contributed for the 
annuity. The rates are further predicated on the following: 

 An annuitant mortality assumption equal to a 50/50 blended of male and female 
mortality under the 2012 Individual Annuity Reserving Table (the 2012 IAR) 

 A gross investment return expectation of 3.75% (which is down from the previous return 
assumption of 4.25%) per year on the charity's gift annuity funds 

 An expense assumption of 1% per year. 

The table below illustrates a rough estimate for gifts of two different amounts and across various ages, 

based on the ACGA rates in July 2020. It should be noted that these payout rates have recently been 

revised down, and are at one of the lowest rates in recent years.  

  $10,000 Annual 
Annuity 
Payment 

$25,000 Annual 
Annuity 
Payment 

Life 
Expectancy 

Expected Return on 
$10,000 gift 

Age 72  $490  $1,225  14.6 years  $7,105 

Age 81  $670  $1,675  8.9 years  $5,896 

Age 90  $860  $2,150  5 years  $3,870 

 

Recommendations 
 

1) Pursue a 4‐year comprehensive CGA program, as part of a broader legacy and planned giving 

effort. The Foundation would commit to not reinsuring any new CGAs created, to prevent donor 

JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 75 of 130 



 
relations concerns and ensure confidence in the Foundation’s CGA program. The intention 

would be to continue the program after four years, but only if the results are positive after a 

comprehensive evaluation. 

2) Adjust parameters of the program: 

a. Minimum gift: $25,000 

b. Minimum age: 72 for individuals and the youngest person in a joint‐life CGA 

c. Maximum gift(s): To be evaluated on a case‐by‐case basis based on liability and 

exposure 

3) Set reasonable expectations with donors with legacy aspirations. Encourage donors to direct the 

CGA remainder for collective funds (such as an organizational endowment fund, the unrestricted 

pool, or a shared fund such as the Lillian Fund or The Fund for Social Justice, even an existing 

donor fund with substantive fund balance) rather than individual named funds. Some CGAs may 

not leave a large enough remainder to fund an individual named fund – and we would prefer 

not to lead donors to expect that they will be. 

4) Staff develop a comprehensive management and marketing approach to ensure a robust, 

diversified portfolio of Charitable Gift Annuities. This would include, but not be limited to,  

including management and accounting procedures to manage risks and ensure adequate capital 

in a risk pool.  

5) Adopt a practice of reserving 10% to 15% (exact percentage to be included in management 

guidelines outlined in #4) from realized annuities for a reserve pool, to protect against liabilities 

as those incurred in the years leading up to 2013. 

6) Establish annual review and analysis of the planned giving program, including reassessment of 

program parameters and success, with a complete assessment at the end of year four.  

JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 76 of 130 



Jewish Community Foundation of Greater Hartford September 17, 2020

Summary of Benefits

5.4% Charitable Gift Annuity

ASSUMPTIONS:

Annuitant 75

Cash Donated $10,000.00

Payout Rate 5.4%

Payment Schedule quarterly
at end

BENEFITS:

Charitable Deduction $4,261.80

Annuity $540.00

Tax-free Portion $462.78

Ordinary Income $77.22

After 12.4 years, the entire annuity becomes ordinary income.

The charitable deduction displayed above is based on an IRS discount rate for a month prior to the month of gift. 
To take your deduction based on this rate, you must specify it in an election statement that you file with your tax
return.

Basic Gift Illustrations IRS Discount Rate for 7/2020 is 0.6%

These calculations are for illustration purposes only and should not be considered legal, accounting, or other professional
advice.  Your actual benefits may vary depending on several factors, including the timing of your gift.

JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 77 of 130 



 

 

 

 

 

Designated Funds Review Committee materials 

will be available after the committee meeting. 

JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 78 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 79 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 80 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 81 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 82 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 83 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 84 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 85 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 86 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 87 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 88 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 89 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 90 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 91 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 92 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 93 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 94 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 95 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 96 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 97 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 98 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 99 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 100 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 101 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 102 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 103 of 130 



JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 104 of 130 



 
2 

 

 

 
STATEMENT OF DISCLOSURE 

 
 
The Jewish Community Foundation seeks to avoid any conflict of interest in its operations, and 
where possible, to avoid even the appearance of a conflict.  All individuals covered by this 
policy* agree that they will not participate in any Foundation decision that materially benefits 
them, a member of their immediate family, or any organization with which the individual has a 
formal relationship. 
 
Foundation Board members and employees must annually disclose the name of each business 
or nonprofit organization that has or reasonably expects to have any material interest in any 
proposed or existing contract, transaction or arrangement with the Jewish Community 
Foundation and in which he/she, his/her spouse or domestic partner or any member of his/her 
immediate family is a member, director, officer, employer or partner. 
 
Based on terms of the Conflict of Interest Policy, please initial the statement that is applicable 
to you: 
 
 

 I am not aware of any direct or indirect financial or other material interest that is 
required to be disclosed under the Conflict of Interest Policy. 

 

 I have described in the attached letter every direct or indirect financial or other material 
interest that is required to be disclosed under the Conflict of Interest Policy. 

 
 
Signature: ____ ___________________________________ Date:       
 
 
Print name:        
 
 
 
 
* Covered individuals include Trustees, members of committees and employees of the Jewish 

Community Foundation. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S:\WORD\FORMS AND TEMPLATES\Corporate & Trustee Matters\Conflcit of Interest Forms\Statement of Disclosure.docx 
 

JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 105 of 130 



BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Leigh A. Newman

 Chair 
Merrill Mandell 

 Vice Chair 
Gayle W. Temkin 

 Vice Chair 
Gerald B. Goldberg

 Secretary 
Randall H. Weinstock

 Treasurer

Jessica L. Fish
Joshua B. Gottfried 

Elysa L. Graber-Lipperman
Walter L. Harrison 

Steven F. Piaker 
David M. Roth 

Cyral A. Sheldon 
Julie R. Spivak 
Sidney Ulreich 
Robert K. Yass 

Carolyn Gitlin
	 ex	officio

LIFE TRUSTEES 
Thomas M. Divine 
Philip D. Feltman* 

Hinda N. Fisher* 
Blanche S. Goldenberg 

Robert B. Goldfarb 
Michael Suisman* 

*Of Blessed Memory

PRESIDENT & CEO 
Jacob Schreiber

Zachs Campus • 333 Bloomf ie ld  Avenue,  Su i te  D • West  Har t ford ,  CT  06117• ph 860-523-7460 • fax  860-231-0576 • www. jc fhar t ford .org

 

Dear Friend, 

You are a visionary. No matter what is happening in the world, your fund provides a 

steady stream of income – forever, whatever the future may bring! 

In fact, every endowment gift you give expresses an optimism and vision for the 

future of the organization it supports. You give your favorite organizations the gift of 

freedom, flexibility and stability.  

In 2020, as our community, country and the world face unprecedented challenges, 

we thought it was more important than ever that you hear directly from these 

organizations about their year and the remarkable resiliency they are each showing: 

Thank you for your ongoing support of our Synagogue.  It is because of donors like 
you that Congregation Beth Israel can continue to be a spiritual home, a place of 
education and social justice and a place that supports its members wherever they 
may be in their lives. Simply put, our congregation grows increasingly dependent on 
our endowments and those contributions are ever more critical in keeping our doors 
open (virtually). Increasingly, our new members are not able to contribute the way 
members in the past have done. Thanks to your generosity, we are able to welcome 
them all into our community. 

While it has been difficult serving the various needs of our congregants in the new 
online, virtual world in which we find ourselves, Congregation Beth Israel has met 
that challenge. We kept our Religious School going and adapted to having our 
Shabbat Services and Torah study all via Zoom, a video conferencing program. We 
stepped up our adult education offerings by developing a 9‐week, virtual Adult 
Education Academy, taught by members of our local Jewish education community. 
Our Cantor has been posting musical programs for us to enjoy in our homes. Our 
Clergy have been working tirelessly to meet the life‐cycle needs of our congregants, 
including numerous virtual Bar/Bat Mitzvah ceremonies and (unfortunately, several) 
virtual Shivas and a regular schedule of virtual Services and study sessions. The list 
goes on and on. 

We have been able to accomplish so much, despite the need to close our facility at 
this time.  Congregation Beth Israel is truly a community, bringing meaning, 
spirituality, and a sense of belonging to our lives. I am proud of what we have 
accomplished during these most difficult times—and I hope you are too. After all, it 
is contributions like yours that enable us to carry on our sacred work. 

             
over >>>>>>>>> 

 
 
 
 

JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 106 of 130 



Zachs Campus • 333 Bloomf ie ld  Avenue,  Su i te  D • West  Har t ford ,  CT  06117• ph 860-523-7460 • fax  860-231-0576 • www. jc fhar t ford .org

 
 
It is the Foundation’s privilege to steward your fund and support your favorite causes 

and organizations, and we hope that you are as proud of your generous giving today 

as you were on the day you started this fund. The organization and the people your 

fund supports certainly feel as grateful, if not more, for your ongoing faith in them. 

Should you have any questions or wish to make an additional gift to your fund, 

please do not hesitate to contact me at kgonnerman@jcfhartford.org or on my cell 

phone: 413‐475‐0415. 

Sincerely, 

 

Kathryn Gonnerman  

Vice President, Philanthropy 

JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 107 of 130 



Community Grants Budget ‐ Projected

July 1, 2020‐June 30, 2021

(as of 6/5/2020)

 7/1/20‐6/30/21  Changes   Revised 

 Projected Amount   Year to Date   Projection 

Amount Available for Grants under Spending Policy1  $1,083,937.00 $1,083,937.00

Plus:  Over/Unexpended prior years' spendable amount $212,000.00 $212,000.00

Plus:  Grant cancellations $170.00 $170.00

Total Amount Available for Grants in FYE 6/30/2021 $1,295,937.00 $170.00 $1,296,107.00

"Contractual" Funding Obligations

Less: Grants to Federation from Board‐restricted funds 

benefiting the Foundation and the Federation  ($4,969.00) $0.00 ($4,969.00)

Less: Grants to Federation for its discretionary use ($148,756.00) $0.00 ($148,756.00)

Board Discretionary Grants 

Less: Jewish Community Foundation 

Operating Support FYE 6/30/2021 ($325,000.00) ($325,000.00)

Less: Hebrew Senior Care

Operating Loan6
($183,828.00) $12,500.00 ($171,328.00)

Above the Line Grants Awarded in FYE 6/30/2021 ($662,553.00) $12,500.00 ($650,053.00)

"Competitive" Grants

Less: JT Connect

Program Associate2 ($40,000.00) ($40,000.00)

Less: Mandell JCC

PJ Connectors3 ($11,310.00) ($11,310.00)

Less: Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford

Wexner Heritage Program4
($11,667.00) ($11,667.00)

Less: University of Hartford Hillel

Engagement Associate5 ($35,260.00) ($35,260.00)

Less: YWCA

Advocacy and Engagemnent ($10,000.00)

Less: Urban League

Economic Empowerment ($10,000.00) ($10,000.00)

Competitive Grants Awarded in FYE 6/30/2021 ($98,237.00) ($20,000.00) ($118,237.00)

"Synagogue Community Building Grants"

Less:

$0.00

Synagogue Grants Awarded in FYE 6/30/21 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Total Community Grants Awarded in FYE 6/30/2021 ($760,790.00) ($7,500.00) ($768,290.00)

Grant Spending Amount available in FYE 6/30/2021 $535,147.00 ($7,330.00) $527,817.00

JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 108 of 130 



2 The total grant to JT Connect is $120,000 over 3 years (FY20‐$45,000, FY21‐$40,000 and FY22‐$35,000)
3 The total grant to the Mandell JCC is $19,340 over 2 years (FY20‐$8,030 and FY21‐$11,310)
4 The total grant to the Jewish Federation is $35,000 over 3 years (FY20‐$11,667, FY21‐$11,667 and FY22‐$11,666)
5 The total grant to Hartford Hillel is $69,020 over 2 years (FY20‐$33,760 and FY21‐$35,260)
6 This is a loan to be repaid by 12/31/20. Payments will be reflected in "Changes to Date" to track balance

S:\Excel\FY2021\Community Grants Budget FY2021

1 This projected amount is equal to 3.75% (5% spending less 1.25% administrative fee) of the 20‐quarter trailing average balance of unrestricted community funds as of June 30, 2020, adjusted to take 

into account the minimum and maximum spending limitations under the Foundation's spending policy.                                                                                                                                                                                      

JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 109 of 130 



Donor Advised Grants

July 1, 2020 ‐ September 13, 2020

Grantee Program Name Grant Date Grant Amount

ALYN ‐ American Friends of ALYN Hospital Wheels of Love 7/29/2020 $1,000.00

Alzheimer's Association ‐ Connecticut Chapter general operating support 9/1/2020 $250.00

American Committee for the Weizmann Institute of Science general operating support 8/13/2020 $250.00

American Diabetes Association general operating support 8/13/2020 $250.00

American Friends of Magen David Adom general operating support 8/13/2020 $250.00

American Heart Association ‐ Connecticut Chapter general operating support 8/13/2020 $250.00

American Society for Yad Vashem, Inc. general operating support 8/13/2020 $250.00

Amistad Center For Art & Culture general operating support 7/1/2020 $1,000.00

Anti‐Defamation League general operating support 9/10/2020 $500.00

Anti‐Defamation League CT Regional Office general operating support 8/13/2020 $250.00

Beth El Temple of West Hartford Brown Family Donation Fund 8/18/2020 $400.00

Beth El Temple of West Hartford dues, Men's Club, Women's Division, BEMA Concerts 7/9/2020 $2,588.50

Beth El Temple of West Hartford general operating support 7/30/2020 $2,800.00

Beth El Temple of West Hartford general operating support 8/10/2020 $387.62

Beth El Temple of West Hartford general operating support 8/17/2020 $1,500.00

Beth El Temple of West Hartford operating support 8/10/2020 $2,500.00

B'nai Brith International general operating support 8/13/2020 $250.00

Brightfocus Foundation macular degeneration research 8/13/2020 $250.00

Camp Laurelwood general operating support 7/14/2020 $300.00

Camp Ramah in New England general operating support 7/30/2020 $360.00

Chabad East of the River, Inc. general operating support 8/13/2020 $500.00

Chabad House of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/1/2020 $500.00

Chabad House of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/13/2020 $1,800.00

Chabad House of Greater Hartford general operating support 8/10/2020 $3,600.00

Chabad House of Greater Hartford general operating support 9/11/2020 $1,800.00

Charter Oak Cultural Center capital campaign 8/14/2020 $2,250.00

Charter Oak Cultural Center general operating support 9/1/2020 $500.00

Charter Oak Cultural Center pandemic and economic crisis‐based purposes  8/11/2020 $2,000.00

Christopher and Dana Reeve Foundation general operating support 8/13/2020 $2,500.00

S:\Staff Personal Files\SinghG\09‐11‐20\Advised Grants 7‐1‐20‐‐9‐13‐20

JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 110 of 130 



Donor Advised Grants

July 1, 2020 ‐ September 13, 2020

Community Partners in Action Prison Arts Program 8/25/2020 $350.00

Congregation Beth Israel cemetery fence 7/13/2020 $3,575.00

Congregation Beth Israel cemetery fence 7/13/2020 $3,575.00

Congregation Beth Israel cemetery fence 7/13/2020 $3,575.00

Congregation Beth Israel cemetery fence 7/13/2020 $3,575.00

Congregation Beth Israel general operating support  8/11/2020 $500.00

Congregation Kol Haverim 2020 Circles of Giving 8/26/2020 $1,080.00

Congregation Tephereth Israel Beth Alom Cemetery Fund 8/13/2020 $3,000.00

Connecticut Children's Medical Center Foundation, Inc. general operating support 9/1/2020 $250.00

Covenant Preparatory School general operating support 8/10/2020 $1,000.00

Cystic Fibrosis Foundation general operating support 8/13/2020 $250.00

Dana‐Farber Cancer Institute Jimmy Fund 8/13/2020 $250.00

Defenders of Wildlife general operating support 8/13/2020 $250.00

Doctors Without Borders USA, Inc. general operating support 8/13/2020 $250.00

Dog Star Rescue general operating support 9/9/2020 $1,500.00

Easter Seals of Greater Hartford general operating support 8/13/2020 $250.00

Emanuel Synagogue Cantor Recognition Fund 7/29/2020 $2,000.00

Emanuel Synagogue general operating support 7/31/2020 $3,200.00

Emanuel Synagogue general operating support 8/10/2020 $1,000.00

Emanuel Synagogue Kol Nidre Fund 9/9/2020 $500.00

Emanuel Synagogue Lomdim B'Yachad Program 9/9/2020 $375.00

Farmington Valley Jewish Congregation ‐ Emek Shalom general support at the Rabbi's discretion 8/27/2020 $10,000.00

Givat Haviva Educational Foundation general operating support 8/11/2020 $1,000.00

Guiding Eyes for the Blind, Inc. general operating support 8/13/2020 $250.00

Hadassah Keeper of the Gate (29944) 7/1/2020 $1,000.00

Hartford Symphony Orchestra general operating support 8/10/2020 $2,500.00

Hebrew Senior Care general operating support 9/1/2020 $250.00

Hebrew Senior Care general operating support per agreed upon terms 7/23/2020 $5,000.00

Hebrew Senior Care immersion blenders for SummerWood 7/6/2020 $500.00

Hebrew Senior Care outdoor tent and patio furniture for SummerWood 7/6/2020 $2,500.00

S:\Staff Personal Files\SinghG\09‐11‐20\Advised Grants 7‐1‐20‐‐9‐13‐20

JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 111 of 130 



Donor Advised Grants

July 1, 2020 ‐ September 13, 2020

Interfund Transfer Jewish Hartford Rapid Relief and Recovery Fund 8/11/2020 $1,000.00

Interfund Transfer Jewish Hartford Rapid Relief and Recovery Fund 8/18/2020 $1,500.00

Israel Cancer Research Fund cancer research 8/13/2020 $500.00

Israel Cancer Research Fund cancer research 8/21/2020 $1,063.00

Jamaica Hospital Medical Center Ophthalmology Department Fund ‐  Activity # 2050 9/10/2020 $5,000.00

Jewish Association for Community Living general operating support 8/20/2020 $2,244.00

Jewish Association for Community Living lift wheelchair van 8/21/2020 $9,000.00

Jewish Association for Community Living lift wheelchair van 8/25/2020 $3,000.00

Jewish Family Services of Greater Hartford COVID‐19 mental health services 8/25/2020 $3,000.00

Jewish Family Services of Greater Hartford mental health services 8/21/2020 $2,000.00

Jewish Family Services of Greater Hartford telehealth and general operating support 8/20/2020 $10,000.00

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford American Jewish Joint Distribution Committee 8/10/2020 $10,000.00

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 8/25/2020 $10,000.00

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/1/2020 $5,000.00

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 8/11/2020 $100,000.00

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 8/26/2020 $500.00

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 9/1/2020 $1,000.00

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford Jessie's Community Gardens 8/10/2020 $250.00

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford NATAL Leadership Series 7/21/2020 $2,000.00

Jewish Federation of South Palm Beach County general operating support 8/26/2020 $500.00

Jewish Foundation for the Righteous general operating support 8/13/2020 $250.00

Jewish Guild for the Blind general operating support 8/13/2020 $250.00

Joyce D. and Andrew J. Mandell Jewish Community Center Crisis Fund 8/27/2020 $250.00

Joyce D. and Andrew J. Mandell Jewish Community Center Crisis Fund 8/27/2020 $10,000.00

Joyce D. and Andrew J. Mandell Jewish Community Center general operating support 9/1/2020 $250.00

Joyce D. and Andrew J. Mandell Jewish Community Center JCC Crisis Fund 8/26/2020 $500.00

Joyce D. and Andrew J. Mandell Jewish Community Center Jonathan's Dream Playground maintenance 7/1/2020 $2,500.00

Joyce D. and Andrew J. Mandell Jewish Community Center Scholarship Fund 8/26/2020 $500.00

Maurice Greenberg Center for Judaic Studies discretionary use of the Greenberg Center 8/10/2020 $1,000.00

Maurice Greenberg Center for Judaic Studies discretionary use of the Greenberg Center Director 9/1/2020 $250.00

S:\Staff Personal Files\SinghG\09‐11‐20\Advised Grants 7‐1‐20‐‐9‐13‐20

JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 112 of 130 



Donor Advised Grants

July 1, 2020 ‐ September 13, 2020

MAZON general operating support 8/26/2020 $250.00

Moishe House International Fund 8/10/2020 $1,000.00

Multiple Sclerosis Foundation general operating support 8/13/2020 $250.00

National Federation of the Blind general operating support 8/13/2020 $250.00

National Wildlife Federation general operating support 8/13/2020 $250.00

Natural Resources Defense Council, Inc. general operating support 8/13/2020 $250.00

Nature Conservancy general operating support 8/13/2020 $250.00

Nutmeg Big Brothers‐Big Sisters general operating support 8/10/2020 $3,600.00

Nutmeg Big Brothers‐Big Sisters general operating support 9/3/2020 $6,400.00

Ocean Conservancy general operating support 8/13/2020 $250.00

Planned Parenthood of Southern New England, Inc. general operating support 9/1/2020 $500.00

Reconstructing Judaism Rabbinic Entrepreneurship Initiative 8/31/2020 $43,000.00

Simon Wiesenthal Center general operating support 8/13/2020 $250.00

Snow Farm ‐ The New England Craft Program general operating support 7/24/2020 $1,000.00

Solomon Schechter Day School of Greater Hartford general operating support 8/27/2020 $636.00

Solomon Schechter Day School of Greater Hartford Hebrew curriculum program 7/14/2020 $1,500.00

Solomon Schechter Day School of Greater Hartford operating support 8/10/2020 $600.00

Solomon Schechter Day School of Greater Hartford outdoor classrooms 8/24/2020 $2,466.00

StandWithUs general operating support 8/26/2020 $250.00

STEP‐GTP tuition for graduate students 8/24/2020 $4,000.00

Temple Emanuel of Newton general operating support 8/10/2020 $2,850.00

Temple Sholom Building Fund  8/10/2020 $1,000.00

Temple Sholom Building Fund  8/10/2020 $982.00

Temple Sinai general operating support  8/11/2020 $250.00

Temple Sinai Brookline dues 7/13/2020 $2,390.00

The Almada Lodge‐Times Farm Camp Corporation Channel 3 Kids Camp 9/9/2020 $1,500.00

The Bridge Family Center, Inc. general operating support 8/10/2020 $1,000.00

The Hole in the Wall Gang Camp general operating support 8/10/2020 $3,600.00

The Leukemia & Lymphoma Society general operating support 8/13/2020 $250.00

United Synagogue of Conservative Judaism general operating support 8/13/2020 $250.00

S:\Staff Personal Files\SinghG\09‐11‐20\Advised Grants 7‐1‐20‐‐9‐13‐20

JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 113 of 130 



Donor Advised Grants

July 1, 2020 ‐ September 13, 2020

Universities Allied for Essential Medicines general operating support 8/13/2020 $10,000.00

University of Connecticut Hillel Jews and Superheroes 8/21/2020 $1,850.00

University of Connecticut Hillel Shabbat in a Bag 9/3/2020 $368.00

Upstate Medical College Alumni Association financial need‐based scholarships 8/12/2020 $10,000.00

Voices of Hope general operating support 8/10/2020 $5,000.00

Watkinson School Ribicoff/Head Scholar 8/10/2020 $5,000.00

World Jewish Congress general operating support 8/13/2020 $250.00

Yale University School of Medicine Research Center for Spinal Cord Injury and Pain  8/13/2020 $50,000.00

Yeshiva Achei Tmimim Lubavitz Services general operating support 8/10/2020 $3,600.00

Young Israel of West Hartford general operating support 7/16/2020 $1,018.00

YWCA Hartford Region, Inc YW programs 8/10/2020 $4,000.00

TOTAL GRANTS 130 Grants $439,758.12

10 Grants totaling $24,184 from Staff Recommendations and Wish List

S:\Staff Personal Files\SinghG\09‐11‐20\Advised Grants 7‐1‐20‐‐9‐13‐20

JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 114 of 130 



Designated Grants 
April 20, 2020 ‐ June 7, 2020

Grantee Program Name Grant Date Grant Amount

ALYN ‐ American Friends of ALYN Hospital support related to COVID‐19 expenses 7/19/2020 $1,590.00

American Cancer Society‐New England Division general operating support 7/20/2020 $216.79

American Israel Education Foundation general operating support 7/20/2020 $5,000.00

American Red Cross‐Greater Hartford Chapter general operating support 7/20/2020 $216.79

American Society for Technion general operating support 7/20/2020 $902.18

Beth David Synagogue COVID‐19 related High Holiday expenses 8/25/2020 $4,000.00

Beth David Synagogue general operating support 7/20/2020 $312.14

Beth David Synagogue general support with priority to recruiting students  7/20/2020 $182.18

Beth El Temple of West Hartford COVID‐19 related expenses 7/30/2020 $6,000.00

Beth El Temple of West Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $299.99

Beth El Temple of West Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $622.12

Beth El Temple of West Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $636.04

Beth El Temple of West Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $3,412.60

Beth El Temple of West Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $5,000.00

Brown University support of Judaic Studies Department and Egyptology De 7/20/2020 $208.79

Camp Laurelwood support related to the impact of COVID‐19 9/4/2020 $5,000.00

Chabad Chevra general operating support 7/16/2020 $5,000.00

Chabad East of the River, Inc. COVID‐19 related High Holiday expenses 8/17/2020 $1,000.00

Chabad East of the River, Inc. general operating support 7/16/2020 $5,000.00

Chabad Farmington Valley COVID‐19 related expenses 9/2/2020 $1,000.00

Chabad Farmington Valley general operating support 7/16/2020 $5,000.00

Chabad House of Charlottesville general operating support  8/18/2020 $100.00

Chabad House of Greater Hartford building, maintenance and capital repair needs  7/24/2020 $2,000.00

Chabad House of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/16/2020 $10,000.00

Chabad House of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $207.37

Charter Oak Cultural Center general operating support 7/20/2020 $245.00

Charter Oak Cultural Center general operating support 7/20/2020 $918.66

Charter Oak Cultural Center general operating support 7/20/2020 $1,057.71

Charter Oak Cultural Center programs for the homeless 7/20/2020 $388.50

S:\Staff Personal Files\SinghG\09‐11‐20\designated grants 7‐1‐20‐‐9‐13‐20

JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 115 of 130 



Designated Grants 
April 20, 2020 ‐ June 7, 2020

Congregation Adath Israel general operating support 7/20/2020 $5,042.71

Congregation Adath Israel general operating support 7/20/2020 $5,287.78

Congregation Beth Israel books and materials in support of the Tots Program 7/20/2020 $555.31

Congregation Beth Israel cantorial and music programs 7/20/2020 $7,510.39

Congregation Beth Israel education programs 7/20/2020 $1,291.81

Congregation Beth Israel educational programs and projects for children  7/20/2020 $1,105.95

Congregation Beth Israel general operating support 7/20/2020 $169.59

Congregation Beth Israel general operating support 7/20/2020 $192.75

Congregation Beth Israel general operating support 7/20/2020 $203.04

Congregation Beth Israel general operating support 7/20/2020 $233.38

Congregation Beth Israel general operating support 7/20/2020 $276.08

Congregation Beth Israel general operating support 7/20/2020 $403.39

Congregation Beth Israel general operating support 7/20/2020 $412.87

Congregation Beth Israel general operating support 7/20/2020 $412.97

Congregation Beth Israel general operating support 7/20/2020 $416.27

Congregation Beth Israel general operating support 7/20/2020 $475.80

Congregation Beth Israel general operating support 7/20/2020 $608.18

Congregation Beth Israel general operating support 7/20/2020 $649.00

Congregation Beth Israel general operating support 7/20/2020 $697.27

Congregation Beth Israel general operating support 7/20/2020 $699.25

Congregation Beth Israel general operating support 7/20/2020 $953.30

Congregation Beth Israel general operating support 7/20/2020 $965.61

Congregation Beth Israel general operating support 7/20/2020 $1,038.79

Congregation Beth Israel general operating support 7/20/2020 $1,196.77

Congregation Beth Israel general operating support 7/20/2020 $1,256.31

Congregation Beth Israel general operating support 7/20/2020 $1,604.00

Congregation Beth Israel general operating support 7/20/2020 $1,688.92

Congregation Beth Israel general operating support 7/20/2020 $3,552.02

Congregation Beth Israel general operating support 7/20/2020 $5,291.21

Congregation Beth Israel general operating support 7/20/2020 $5,372.97

S:\Staff Personal Files\SinghG\09‐11‐20\designated grants 7‐1‐20‐‐9‐13‐20

JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 116 of 130 



Designated Grants 
April 20, 2020 ‐ June 7, 2020

Congregation Beth Israel programs that support Jewish history  7/20/2020 $251.00

Congregation Beth Israel programs outside of  regular synagogue budget   7/20/2020 $720.78

Congregation Beth Israel salary and health benefits for the Senior Rabbi 7/20/2020 $4,341.67

Congregation Beth Israel salary of highest compensated first grade teacher  7/20/2020 $3,696.10

Congregation Beth Israel Sunday school prizes and the SAGE program 7/20/2020 $497.66

Congregation Beth Israel the Deborah Library 7/20/2020 $191.63

Congregation Beth Israel the Legacy for Our Future program 7/20/2020 $857.26

Congregation Beth Shalom Rodfe Zedek general operating support 7/20/2020 $2,097.25

Congregation B'nai Tikvoh‐Sholom COVID‐19 related High Holiday expenses 8/19/2020 $2,000.00

Congregation Kol Haverim building and maintenance upkeep 7/20/2020 $673.38

Congregation Kol Haverim educational programs 7/20/2020 $1,157.31

Congregation Kol Haverim general operating support 7/20/2020 $422.13

Congregation Kol Haverim general operating support 7/20/2020 $462.45

Congregation Kol Haverim general operating support 7/20/2020 $616.42

Congregation Kol Haverim support of the religious school 7/20/2020 $435.38

Congregation P'nai Or of Central Connecticut general operating support 7/20/2020 $236.63

Connecticut Bail Fund general operating support 7/23/2020 $1,000.00

Connecticut Children's Medical Center Foundation, Inc. counseling and bereavement services for families 7/20/2020 $420.63

Connecticut Public Broadcasting, Inc. general operating support 7/20/2020 $5,000.00

Emanuel Synagogue COVID‐19 related expenses 8/10/2020 $6,000.00

Emanuel Synagogue general operating support 7/20/2020 $70.99

Emanuel Synagogue general operating support 7/20/2020 $111.27

Emanuel Synagogue general operating support 7/20/2020 $194.70

Emanuel Synagogue general operating support 7/20/2020 $216.00

Emanuel Synagogue general operating support 7/20/2020 $605.46

Emanuel Synagogue general operating support 7/20/2020 $980.03

Emanuel Synagogue general operating support 7/20/2020 $1,013.70

Emanuel Synagogue general operating support 7/20/2020 $1,823.37

Federation Homes, Inc. food and sundries for residents 7/24/2020 $1,500.00

Federation Homes, Inc. programming for elderly and disabled residents 7/20/2020 $3,782.06

S:\Staff Personal Files\SinghG\09‐11‐20\designated grants 7‐1‐20‐‐9‐13‐20

JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 117 of 130 



Designated Grants 
April 20, 2020 ‐ June 7, 2020

Hadassah general operating support 8/18/2020 $900.00

Hadassah Hartford Chapter general operating support 7/20/2020 $250.16

Hadassah Hartford Chapter general operating support 7/20/2020 $5,000.00

HARC, Inc. general operating support 7/20/2020 $162.94

Hartford Communities That Care general operating support 7/23/2020 $1,000.00

Hartford Hospital nursing education and professional development 7/20/2020 $5,000.00

Hebrew Senior Care BHU renovations 8/18/2020 $20,000.00

Hebrew Senior Care books, games, puzzles and other amenities 7/20/2020 $585.64

Hebrew Senior Care education programs for residents 7/20/2020 $554.56

Hebrew Senior Care general operating support 7/20/2020 $182.00

Hebrew Senior Care general operating support 7/20/2020 $730.65

Hebrew Senior Care general operating support 7/20/2020 $1,256.31

Hebrew Senior Care general operating support 7/20/2020 $1,451.61

Hebrew Senior Care general operating support 7/20/2020 $2,219.06

Hebrew Senior Care general operating support 7/20/2020 $5,000.00

Hebrew Senior Care general operating support per agreed upon terms 7/21/2020 $100,000.00

Hebrew Senior Care Jewish religious functions of Hebrew Senior Care 7/20/2020 $223.43

Hebrew Senior Care programs and services for the elderly 7/20/2020 $1,543.22

Hebrew Senior Care renovations and/or expansion projects  7/20/2020 $299.62

Hebrew Senior Care social and recreational activities 7/20/2020 $807.14

Hebrew Senior Care support related to the impact of COVID‐19 9/4/2020 $10,000.00

Hillel Academy of Broome County general operating support 7/20/2020 $197.52

Interval House Empowering Clients at Interval House 7/21/2020 $5,000.00

Jewish Association for Community Living general operating support 7/19/2020 $217.70

Jewish Association for Community Living general operating support 7/19/2020 $6,000.00

Jewish Association for Community Living general operating support 7/20/2020 $179.29

Jewish Association for Community Living general operating support 7/20/2020 $230.28

Jewish Association for Community Living general operating support 7/20/2020 $250.87

Jewish Association for Community Living general operating support 7/20/2020 $351.00

Jewish Association for Community Living general operating support 7/20/2020 $370.88

S:\Staff Personal Files\SinghG\09‐11‐20\designated grants 7‐1‐20‐‐9‐13‐20

JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 118 of 130 



Designated Grants 
April 20, 2020 ‐ June 7, 2020

Jewish Association for Community Living general operating support 7/20/2020 $378.36

Jewish Association for Community Living general operating support 7/20/2020 $383.13

Jewish Association for Community Living general operating support 7/20/2020 $399.93

Jewish Association for Community Living general operating support 7/20/2020 $456.68

Jewish Association for Community Living general operating support 7/20/2020 $476.47

Jewish Association for Community Living general operating support 7/20/2020 $485.27

Jewish Association for Community Living general operating support 7/20/2020 $534.78

Jewish Association for Community Living general operating support 7/20/2020 $556.95

Jewish Association for Community Living general operating support 7/20/2020 $561.10

Jewish Association for Community Living general operating support 7/20/2020 $581.75

Jewish Association for Community Living general operating support 7/20/2020 $603.72

Jewish Association for Community Living general operating support 7/20/2020 $2,196.65

Jewish Association for Community Living general operating support 7/20/2020 $3,840.20

Jewish Association for Community Living general operating support 7/20/2020 $5,000.00

Jewish Association for Community Living general operating support 7/20/2020 $8,342.25

Jewish Community Foundation of Greater Hartford, Inc. general operating support 7/20/2020 $1,372.00

Jewish Community Foundation of Greater Hartford, Inc. general operating support 7/20/2020 $17,839.77

Jewish Community Foundation of Greater Hartford, Inc. staff professional development 7/20/2020 $4,009.03

Jewish Family Services of Greater Hartford COVID‐19 food pantry porgram 7/1/2020 $10,000.00

Jewish Family Services of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $6,000.00

Jewish Family Services of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $217.87

Jewish Family Services of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $219.99

Jewish Family Services of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $220.54

Jewish Family Services of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $287.10

Jewish Family Services of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $291.81

Jewish Family Services of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $353.25

Jewish Family Services of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $825.02

Jewish Family Services of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $952.95

Jewish Family Services of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $1,145.57

Jewish Family Services of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $1,256.31

S:\Staff Personal Files\SinghG\09‐11‐20\designated grants 7‐1‐20‐‐9‐13‐20

JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 119 of 130 



Designated Grants 
April 20, 2020 ‐ June 7, 2020

Jewish Family Services of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $1,451.61

Jewish Family Services of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $1,680.86

Jewish Family Services of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $1,867.89

Jewish Family Services of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $1,877.27

Jewish Family Services of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $2,472.70

Jewish Family Services of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $5,000.00

Jewish Family Services of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $12,170.65

Jewish Family Services of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $164.24

Jewish Family Services of Greater Hartford in‐home counseling services for senior adults 7/19/2020 $20,000.00

Jewish Family Services of Greater Hartford Kosher food pantry 7/20/2020 $240.01

Jewish Family Services of Greater Hartford mental health care for low income senior adults 7/19/2020 $25,000.00

Jewish Family Services of Greater Hartford support related to the impact of COVID‐19 9/4/2020 $50,000.00

Jewish Family Services of Greater Hartford Tara's Closet 7/20/2020 $224.30

Jewish Family Services of Greater Hartford the Benet A. Rothstein Child Services Program 7/20/2020 $209.02

Jewish Family Services of Greater Hartford the chronic needs program 7/20/2020 $1,282.77

Jewish Family Services of Greater Hartford the chronic needs program 7/20/2020 $1,587.15

Jewish Family Services of Greater Hartford the chronic needs program 7/20/2020 $3,569.51

Jewish Family Services of Greater Hartford transportation for low income seniors 7/19/2020 $2,000.00

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford annual campaign with larger portion to Jews overseas 7/20/2020 $4,483.57

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford cemetery maintenance 7/20/2020 $6,241.10

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford cemetery maintenance of Zion Hill Cemetery 7/20/2020 $380.17

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford Children's Reading Partners 7/20/2020 $157.49

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford Children's Reading Partners volunteer education 7/23/2020 $4,101.43

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford CJEL ‐ professional development of Jewish educators 7/20/2020 $141.29

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford CSB air filtration system 9/4/2020 $10,000.00

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford educational scholarships 7/19/2020 $1,387.68

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford emergency programs in Israel 7/19/2020 $1,338.75

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $198.33

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $201.97

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $224.85

S:\Staff Personal Files\SinghG\09‐11‐20\designated grants 7‐1‐20‐‐9‐13‐20

JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 120 of 130 



Designated Grants 
April 20, 2020 ‐ June 7, 2020

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $233.68

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $260.27

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $307.70

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $331.37

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $386.71

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $400.69

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $403.87

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $405.50

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $434.30

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $439.39

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $468.61

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $477.93

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $480.47

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $535.00

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $612.86

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $649.01

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $667.32

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $814.28

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $825.02

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $851.74

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $873.75

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $948.19

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $986.69

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $1,003.50

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $1,025.82

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $1,235.97

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $1,403.78

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $1,404.19

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $1,475.51

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $1,529.89

S:\Staff Personal Files\SinghG\09‐11‐20\designated grants 7‐1‐20‐‐9‐13‐20

JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 121 of 130 



Designated Grants 
April 20, 2020 ‐ June 7, 2020

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $1,557.12

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $1,675.36

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $1,695.78

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $1,894.24

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $1,934.04

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $1,970.50

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $1,986.67

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $2,372.56

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $2,623.98

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $2,785.24

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $2,855.54

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $3,716.21

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $4,434.69

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $4,437.17

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $4,767.22

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $5,142.06

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $5,333.22

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $5,859.06

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $6,574.88

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $7,447.41

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $9,455.87

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $10,000.00

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $12,000.00

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $12,444.24

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $12,636.44

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $13,851.89

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $20,477.87

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $59,606.39

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $68.90

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $195.55

S:\Staff Personal Files\SinghG\09‐11‐20\designated grants 7‐1‐20‐‐9‐13‐20

JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 122 of 130 



Designated Grants 
April 20, 2020 ‐ June 7, 2020

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $235.45

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $260.99

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $287.90

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $574.00

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $1,111.87

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $5,000.00

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford general operating support 8/14/2020 $3,000.00

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford upkeep for Zion Hill cemetery 7/20/2020 $255.67

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford Hartford Jewish cemeteries capital restoration 7/20/2020 $2,475.24

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford Israel Emergency Fund 7/19/2020 $1,600.00

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford Jewish senior adult needs in Greater Hartford 7/20/2020 $5,282.10

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford leadership programs 7/20/2020 $111.27

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford medical funds for Israel 7/20/2020 $2,248.44

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford Mitnick Education Conference 7/23/2020 $500.00

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford Temple B'nai Abraham Cemetery maintenance 7/20/2020 $3,598.64

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford the Scribner Library or CJEL programs 7/20/2020 $270.13

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford Young Leadership Awards and staff development 7/20/2020 $8,084.32

Jewish Historical Society of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $145.11

Jewish Historical Society of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $163.92

Jewish Historical Society of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $184.80

Jewish Historical Society of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $196.81

Jewish Historical Society of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $212.26

Jewish Historical Society of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $212.99

Jewish Historical Society of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $231.03

Jewish Historical Society of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $277.96

Jewish Historical Society of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $281.57

Jewish Historical Society of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $362.53

Jewish Historical Society of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $399.58

Jewish Historical Society of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $414.74

Jewish Historical Society of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $518.01

S:\Staff Personal Files\SinghG\09‐11‐20\designated grants 7‐1‐20‐‐9‐13‐20

JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 123 of 130 



Designated Grants 
April 20, 2020 ‐ June 7, 2020

Jewish Historical Society of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $553.01

Jewish Historical Society of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $561.10

Jewish Historical Society of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $587.32

Jewish Historical Society of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $731.24

Jewish Historical Society of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $1,080.62

Jewish Historical Society of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $1,145.57

Jewish Historical Society of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $5,000.00

Jewish Historical Society of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $5,768.57

Jewish Teen Learning Connection general operating support 7/20/2020 $279.24

Jewish Teen Learning Connection general operating support 7/20/2020 $347.18

Jewish Teen Learning Connection general operating support 7/20/2020 $425.24

Jewish Teen Learning Connection general operating support 7/20/2020 $8,755.63

Jewish Teen Learning Connection support related to the impact of COVID‐19 9/4/2020 $10,000.00

JFACT Fund, Inc. educational programs and activities 7/20/2020 $515.54

JFACT Fund, Inc. educational programs and activities 7/20/2020 $2,804.35

JFACT Fund, Inc. educational programs and activities 7/20/2020 $4,167.35

JFACT Fund, Inc. educational programs and activities 7/20/2020 $7,602.95

JFACT Fund, Inc. general operating support 7/20/2020 $5,000.00

Johns Hopkins Hillel shabbat dinners 7/20/2020 $178.93

Joyce D. and Andrew J. Mandell Jewish Community Center Beatrice Fox Auerbach Early Childhood Center 7/20/2020 $323.31

Joyce D. and Andrew J. Mandell Jewish Community Center Camp Shalom scholarship fund 7/20/2020 $272.87

Joyce D. and Andrew J. Mandell Jewish Community Center Camp Shalom scholarship fund 7/20/2020 $629.90

Joyce D. and Andrew J. Mandell Jewish Community Center capital needs 7/20/2020 $315.55

Joyce D. and Andrew J. Mandell Jewish Community Center cultural arts programs 7/20/2020 $2,652.49

Joyce D. and Andrew J. Mandell Jewish Community Center ECC scholarships 7/20/2020 $4,603.85

Joyce D. and Andrew J. Mandell Jewish Community Center educational,literary,religious and charitable purposes 7/20/2020 $7,353.59

Joyce D. and Andrew J. Mandell Jewish Community Center general operating support 7/16/2020 $50,000.00

Joyce D. and Andrew J. Mandell Jewish Community Center general operating support 7/20/2020 $104.35

Joyce D. and Andrew J. Mandell Jewish Community Center general operating support 7/20/2020 $123.20

Joyce D. and Andrew J. Mandell Jewish Community Center general operating support 7/20/2020 $217.44

S:\Staff Personal Files\SinghG\09‐11‐20\designated grants 7‐1‐20‐‐9‐13‐20

JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 124 of 130 



Designated Grants 
April 20, 2020 ‐ June 7, 2020

Joyce D. and Andrew J. Mandell Jewish Community Center general operating support 7/20/2020 $221.51

Joyce D. and Andrew J. Mandell Jewish Community Center general operating support 7/20/2020 $287.90

Joyce D. and Andrew J. Mandell Jewish Community Center general operating support 7/20/2020 $303.64

Joyce D. and Andrew J. Mandell Jewish Community Center general operating support 7/20/2020 $495.10

Joyce D. and Andrew J. Mandell Jewish Community Center general operating support 7/20/2020 $501.72

Joyce D. and Andrew J. Mandell Jewish Community Center general operating support 7/20/2020 $540.39

Joyce D. and Andrew J. Mandell Jewish Community Center general operating support 7/20/2020 $640.56

Joyce D. and Andrew J. Mandell Jewish Community Center general operating support 7/20/2020 $730.86

Joyce D. and Andrew J. Mandell Jewish Community Center general operating support 7/20/2020 $834.69

Joyce D. and Andrew J. Mandell Jewish Community Center general operating support 7/20/2020 $958.51

Joyce D. and Andrew J. Mandell Jewish Community Center general operating support 7/20/2020 $1,025.38

Joyce D. and Andrew J. Mandell Jewish Community Center general operating support 7/20/2020 $1,256.31

Joyce D. and Andrew J. Mandell Jewish Community Center general operating support 7/20/2020 $1,324.48

Joyce D. and Andrew J. Mandell Jewish Community Center general operating support 7/20/2020 $5,000.00

Joyce D. and Andrew J. Mandell Jewish Community Center general operating support 7/20/2020 $6,166.62

Joyce D. and Andrew J. Mandell Jewish Community Center general operating support 7/20/2020 $9,697.38

Joyce D. and Andrew J. Mandell Jewish Community Center general operating support 7/20/2020 $50,000.00

Joyce D. and Andrew J. Mandell Jewish Community Center Hartford Jewish Film Festival 7/20/2020 $215.53

Joyce D. and Andrew J. Mandell Jewish Community Center Hartford Jewish Film Festival 7/20/2020 $384.51

Joyce D. and Andrew J. Mandell Jewish Community Center Hartford Jewish Film Festival 7/20/2020 $935.87

Joyce D. and Andrew J. Mandell Jewish Community Center Jonathan's Dream playground maintenance 7/20/2020 $210.28

Joyce D. and Andrew J. Mandell Jewish Community Center membership subsidies for low income seniors 7/19/2020 $2,525.00

Joyce D. and Andrew J. Mandell Jewish Community Center operating support of the free weight section  7/20/2020 $220.08

Joyce D. and Andrew J. Mandell Jewish Community Center PJ Library 7/19/2020 $540.00

Joyce D. and Andrew J. Mandell Jewish Community Center programs and projects for children 7/20/2020 $333.20

Joyce D. and Andrew J. Mandell Jewish Community Center racquetball court mainteance 7/20/2020 $170.21

Joyce D. and Andrew J. Mandell Jewish Community Center scholarships for children in theater programs 7/20/2020 $223.11

Joyce D. and Andrew J. Mandell Jewish Community Center senior adult programs 7/20/2020 $1,597.81

Joyce D. and Andrew J. Mandell Jewish Community Center senior adult programs 7/20/2020 $2,800.92

Joyce D. and Andrew J. Mandell Jewish Community Center special needs programming 7/20/2020 $101.32

S:\Staff Personal Files\SinghG\09‐11‐20\designated grants 7‐1‐20‐‐9‐13‐20

JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 125 of 130 



Designated Grants 
April 20, 2020 ‐ June 7, 2020

Joyce D. and Andrew J. Mandell Jewish Community Center special needs programs 7/20/2020 $394.34

Joyce D. and Andrew J. Mandell Jewish Community Center support of arts and cultural programming 7/20/2020 $673.74

Joyce D. and Andrew J. Mandell Jewish Community Center fitness center and Hartford Jewish Film Festival 7/24/2020 $2,893.21

Joyce D. and Andrew J. Mandell Jewish Community Center support related to the impact of COVID‐19 9/4/2020 $25,000.00

Joyce D. and Andrew J. Mandell Jewish Community Center swim and tennis club general operating support 7/20/2020 $174.09

Joyce D. and Andrew J. Mandell Jewish Community Center the Camp Shalom scholarship fund 7/20/2020 $507.11

Joyce D. and Andrew J. Mandell Jewish Community Center unique and non‐recurring or emergency needs 7/20/2020 $317.98

Maurice Greenberg Center for Judaic Studies support of the Greenberg Center for Judaic Studies 7/20/2020 $208.79

Mikveh Bess Israel of West Hartford Inc. general operating support 7/16/2020 $5,000.00

Nefesh B'Nefesh general operating support 7/19/2020 $1,970.00

New Britain Institute the New Britain Industrial Museum 8/18/2020 $100.00

New England Jewish Academy capital needs 7/20/2020 $767.30

New England Jewish Academy furthering the Jewish education of young persons 7/20/2020 $2,368.62

New England Jewish Academy general operating support 7/19/2020 $88.71

New England Jewish Academy general operating support 7/19/2020 $3,000.00

New England Jewish Academy general operating support 7/20/2020 $68.90

New England Jewish Academy general operating support 7/20/2020 $163.92

New England Jewish Academy general operating support 7/20/2020 $174.77

New England Jewish Academy general operating support 7/20/2020 $203.76

New England Jewish Academy general operating support 7/20/2020 $224.80

New England Jewish Academy general operating support 7/20/2020 $235.45

New England Jewish Academy general operating support 7/20/2020 $240.28

New England Jewish Academy general operating support 7/20/2020 $241.61

New England Jewish Academy general operating support 7/20/2020 $263.51

New England Jewish Academy general operating support 7/20/2020 $392.34

New England Jewish Academy general operating support 7/20/2020 $400.10

New England Jewish Academy general operating support 7/20/2020 $561.61

New England Jewish Academy general operating support 7/20/2020 $730.65

New England Jewish Academy general operating support 7/20/2020 $936.44

New England Jewish Academy general operating support 7/20/2020 $967.27

S:\Staff Personal Files\SinghG\09‐11‐20\designated grants 7‐1‐20‐‐9‐13‐20

JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 126 of 130 



Designated Grants 
April 20, 2020 ‐ June 7, 2020

New England Jewish Academy general operating support 7/20/2020 $969.30

New England Jewish Academy general operating support 7/20/2020 $5,000.00

New England Jewish Academy general operating support 7/20/2020 $6,678.68

New England Jewish Academy general operating support 7/20/2020 $7,498.87

New England Jewish Academy girls athletic activities,art,music and cultural programs 7/20/2020 $321.73

New England Jewish Academy scholarships 7/16/2020 $30,000.00

New England Jewish Academy scholarships 7/19/2020 $750.00

New England Jewish Academy scholarships 7/20/2020 $81.47

New England Jewish Academy scholarships 7/20/2020 $275.86

New England Jewish Academy scholarships 7/20/2020 $27,998.03

New England Jewish Academy support related to the impact of COVID‐19 9/4/2020 $25,000.00

New England Jewish Academy the Scribner Library 7/20/2020 $270.13

ORT America general operating support 7/20/2020 $232.84

Prudence Crandall Center New Life Fund for Domestic Violence Victims  7/21/2020 $10,000.00

Saint Francis Hospital and Medical Center Foundation Inc. nursing education and professional development 7/20/2020 $5,000.00

Solomon Schechter Day School of Greater Hartford after school athletic programs or general support 7/20/2020 $391.35

Solomon Schechter Day School of Greater Hartford COVID‐19 related expenses 7/30/2020 $3,000.00

Solomon Schechter Day School of Greater Hartford enrichment of Judaic education  7/20/2020 $1,342.23

Solomon Schechter Day School of Greater Hartford furthering the Jewish education of young persons 7/20/2020 $2,368.62

Solomon Schechter Day School of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/19/2020 $88.70

Solomon Schechter Day School of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $156.59

Solomon Schechter Day School of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $174.78

Solomon Schechter Day School of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $194.72

Solomon Schechter Day School of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $208.42

Solomon Schechter Day School of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $232.26

Solomon Schechter Day School of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $265.86

Solomon Schechter Day School of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $333.89

Solomon Schechter Day School of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $362.75

Solomon Schechter Day School of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $384.99

Solomon Schechter Day School of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $451.23

S:\Staff Personal Files\SinghG\09‐11‐20\designated grants 7‐1‐20‐‐9‐13‐20

JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 127 of 130 



Designated Grants 
April 20, 2020 ‐ June 7, 2020

Solomon Schechter Day School of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $3,679.48

Solomon Schechter Day School of Greater Hartford general operating support 7/20/2020 $5,000.00

Solomon Schechter Day School of Greater Hartford honoring milestones in students' Jewish education  7/20/2020 $555.59

Solomon Schechter Day School of Greater Hartford literature awards 7/20/2020 $272.05

Solomon Schechter Day School of Greater Hartford maintenance of Temple B'nai Israel memorial plaques an 7/20/2020 $439.44

Solomon Schechter Day School of Greater Hartford music programs 7/20/2020 $114.41

Solomon Schechter Day School of Greater Hartford programs in mathematics and science 7/20/2020 $605.90

Solomon Schechter Day School of Greater Hartford scholarships 7/16/2020 $30,000.00

Solomon Schechter Day School of Greater Hartford scholarships 7/19/2020 $750.00

Solomon Schechter Day School of Greater Hartford scholarships 7/20/2020 $81.47

Solomon Schechter Day School of Greater Hartford scholarships 7/20/2020 $638.04

Solomon Schechter Day School of Greater Hartford scholarships 7/20/2020 $804.45

Solomon Schechter Day School of Greater Hartford scholarships 7/20/2020 $2,124.97

Solomon Schechter Day School of Greater Hartford scholarships for students who have musical talent  7/20/2020 $985.94

Solomon Schechter Day School of Greater Hartford science and technology enrichment 7/20/2020 $477.15

Solomon Schechter Day School of Greater Hartford support related to the impact of COVID‐19 9/4/2020 $25,000.00

Solomon Schechter Day School of Greater Hartford Zelda Cramer Ungar Technology Prize 7/20/2020 $247.61

Temple Beth Hillel of South Windsor humanitarian aid related to the impact of COVID‐19 9/4/2020 $2,500.00

Temple Beth Torah COVID‐19 related High Holiday expenses 8/17/2020 $1,000.00

Temple Sinai youth activities 7/20/2020 $2,383.13

The First Tee of Connecticut Daniel J. Novarr Scholarship 7/20/2020 $220.10

The Good People Fund Ten Gav 7/19/2020 $650.00

Trinity College Hillel general operating support 7/20/2020 $2,234.03

United States Holocaust Memorial Museum general operating support 7/20/2020 $5,000.00

United Synagogues of Greater Hartford COVID‐19 related High Holiday expenses 9/11/2020 $1,000.00

University of Connecticut Foundation, Inc. nursing education and professional development 7/20/2020 $5,000.00

University of Connecticut Hillel general operating support 7/20/2020 $2,196.80

University of Connecticut Hillel general operating support 7/20/2020 $2,651.32

University of Connecticut Hillel general operating support 7/20/2020 $5,000.00

University of Hartford Hillel University of Hartford Hillel general operating support 7/20/2020 $1,965.68

S:\Staff Personal Files\SinghG\09‐11‐20\designated grants 7‐1‐20‐‐9‐13‐20

JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 128 of 130 



Designated Grants 
April 20, 2020 ‐ June 7, 2020

University of Hartford Hillel University of Hartford Hillel general operating support 7/20/2020 $3,477.96

University of Hartford Hillel University of Hartford Hillel general operating support 7/20/2020 $5,000.00

University of Saint Joseph general operating support 7/20/2020 $104.39

University of Vermont Center for Holocaust Studies 7/20/2020 $104.39

Voices of Hope general operating support 7/20/2020 $2,547.66

Voices of Hope Holocaust educational programs for secular institutions 7/20/2020 $1,722.06

Voices of Hope support related to the impact of COVID‐19 9/4/2020 $5,000.00

WIZO USA general operating support 7/20/2020 $198.32

TOTAL 427 Grants $1,351,411.41

S:\Staff Personal Files\SinghG\09‐11‐20\designated grants 7‐1‐20‐‐9‐13‐20

JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 129 of 130 



Fund Type #Grants 2020 $$ FY2020 #Grants 2019 $$ 2019 Unrestricted Donor Advised Designated Interfund Grants Fund Type

#Grants 

2020 $$ FY2020

#Grants 

2019 $$ 2019 Unrestricted Donor Advised Designated Interfund Grants

5/$536,733 110/$373,065 416/$1,186,880 2/$2,500 14/$291,873 525/$1,185,677 471/$1,652,974 48/$355,577

DAF 110 $373,065 72 $170,449 4/$520,756 72/$170,449 416/$868,444 2/$3,735 DAF 525 $1,815,677 600 $2,272,294 14/$707,408 600/$2,272,294 497/$1,399,524 10/$98,020

Designated 416 $1,186,881 416 $868,444 Designated 471 $1,652,974 497 $1,399,524

Unrestricted  5 $536,733 4 $520,756 Unrestricted  14 $291,873 14 $707,408

Totals 531 $2,096,679 492 $1,559,649 Totals 1010 $3,760,524 1111 $4,379,226

AS OF 8/31/2020 August AS OF 6/30/2020 JUNE

$2,968,620.00 536

Interfund Grants 2 $2,500 2 $3,735 $3,066,194.00 FY2020 ‐ Amount above excludes operatimng grants to JCF totaling $360,135

510 FY2019 ‐ Amount above excludes operating grants to JCF totaling $438,296

Program Areas Percentage Grant Amount

Arts & Culture 1.8% $38,491

Community Building 43.7% $916,480

Education 11.4% $238,630

Human Services 18.0% $377,903

Israel/Overseas 1.5% $31,444

Other 2.0% $42,040

Outreach 2.0% $42,562

Religion/Spiritual 9.9% $208,339

Seniors 9.6% $200,790

TOTAL 100% $2,096,679

0.0% 5.0% 10.0% 15.0% 20.0% 25.0% 30.0% 35.0% 40.0% 45.0%

Seniors, 9.6%

Religion/Spiritual, 9.9%

Outreach, 2.0%

Other, 2.0%

Israel/Overseas, 1.5%

Human Services, 18.0%

Education, 11.4%

Community Building, 
43.7%Arts & Culture, 1.8%

Grants Awarded by Program Area

JCF Board of Trustees Meeting Page 130 of 130 


	09-24-20-Agenda
	09-24-20-Minutes-09-03-20
	09-24-20-Governance-Nominations
	Trustee-Nominations.pdf
	Binder5.pdf
	Trustee-Bios.pdf
	Trustee-Bios-2.pdf


	09-24-20-Investment
	09-24-20-Presidents-Report
	Presidents-Report.pdf
	Management-Dashboard.pdf
	Dashboard- September2020


	09-24-20-Legacy
	Legacy-1.pdf
	Legacy-2.pdf
	Legacy Giving Program Raises $1 Billion for Jewish Communities
	New Collaborations
	Young Donors



	09-24-20-CGA-Recommendation
	CGA-Recommendation.pdf
	CGA-Illustration.pdf

	09-24-20-Designated-Funds
	09-24-20-Budget-Finance
	09-24-20-Board-Affiliation-and-Disclosure-Form
	09-24-20-Stewardship-Letter
	09-24-20-Grants
	Grant-Report.pdf
	Grant-Detail.pdf




